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CODE OF CONDUCT

Shahmurad Sugar Mills Limited is guided by the following principles in its pursuit of excellence in all activities for the
attainment of the Company's Objectives.

THE COMPANY

� Fulfills all statutory requirements of the Regulatory Authority and follows all applicable laws of the Country together
with compliance of accepted accounting principles, rules and procedures required.

� Deals with all stakeholders in an objective and transparent manner so as to meet the expectations of those who rely
on the Company.

� Meet the expectations of the spectrum of the society and the Regulatory Authority by implementing an effective and
fair system of financial reporting and internal controls.

� Uses all means to protect the environment and ensures health and safety of the employees.

� Activities and involvement of directors and employees of the Company in no way conflict with the interest of the
Company. All acts and decisions of the management are motivated by the interest of the Company rather than their
own.

� Ensures efficient and effective utilization of its resources.

AS DIRECTORS

� Promote and develop attractive environment through responsive policies and guidelines to facilitate viable and timely
decisions.

� Maintain organizational effectiveness for the achievement of the Company's goals.

� Support and adherence to compliance of legal and industry requirements.

� Safeguard the interest and assets of the Company to meet and honor all obligations of the Company.

� Promote a culture that supports enterprise and innovation with appropriate short-term and long term performance
related rewards that are fair and achievable in motivating management and employees effectively and productively.

AS EXECUTIVE AND MANAGERS

� Ensure cost effectiveness and profitability of operations.

� Provide directions and leadership for the organization and take viable and timely decisions.

� Develop and cultivate work ethics and harmony among colleagues and associates.

� Encourage initiatives and self-realization in employees through meaningful empowerment.

� Promote and develop culture of excellence, conservation and continuous improvement.

� Provide pleasant work atmosphere and ensure equitable way of working and rewarding system.

� Institute commitment to environmental, health and safety performance.

AS EMPLOYEES AND WORKERS

� Observe company's policies, regulations and Codes of Best Business Practices.

� Exercise prudence in effective, efficient and economical utilization of resources of the Company.

� Make concerted struggle for excellence and quality.

� Devote productive time and continued efforts to strength the Company.

� Protect and safeguard the interest of the Company and avoid the conflict of interest. Ensure the primary interest in
all respects is that of the Company.

� Maintain financial integrity and must avoid making personal gain at the Company's cost by participating in or assisting
activities which compete with the Company.
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Karachi: December 23, 2021

By Order of the Board

M. YASIN MUGHAL
COMPANY SECRETARY

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 43rd Annual General Meeting of SHAHMURAD SUGAR MILLS LIMITED will be held at the
Registered Office of the Company at 96-A, Sindhi Muslim Society, Karachi on Thursday, January 27, 2022 at 11.30 a.m. to
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm the minutes of the 42nd Annual General Meeting held on  January 28, 2021.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended September 30,
2021 together with the Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon.

3. To approve payment of Cash Dividend @ 30% i.e. Rs.3.00 per ordinary share of Rs.10/= each for the year ended
September 30, 2021 as recommended by the Board of Directors.

4. To  appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration for the year 2021-22. The present Auditors M/s Kreston Hyder Bhimji
& Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and offer themselves for re-appointment.

OTHER BUSINESS

5. To transact any other business with permission of the Chair.

NOTES:

1. Closure of Share Transfer Books:

The Register of the Members of the Company will remain closed from  January 21, 2022 to  January 30, 2022 (Both
days inclusive) for the purpose of attending the Annual General Meeting / Transfer of shares / entitlement of cash
dividend.

2. Participation in Annual General Meeting and appointing Proxies:

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote may appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend and
vote on his/her behalf . PROXIES MUST BE RECEIVED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT
LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING.

In pursuance of Circular No.1 of SECP dated January 26, 2000 the CDC Account holders/subaccount holders are
requested to bring with them their original CNICs or Passports alongwith Participant(s) ID Number and CDC account
numbers at the time of attending the Annual General Meeting for identification purpose. If proxies are granted by such
shareholders the same must be accompanied with attested copies of the CNICs or the Passports of the beneficial
owners. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen signatures of
the nominee shall be submitted along with Proxy form to the Company. The nominee shall produced his original CNIC
at the time of attending the meeting for identification.

3.    Submission of copies of CNIC:

Individual Shareholders are once again reminded to submit a copy of their valid CNIC, if not provided earlier, to the
Company's Share Registrar. In case of non-availability of a valid copy of the Shareholders' CNIC in the records of the
Company, the company shall be constrained to withhold the Dividend, under the provisions of Section 243 of the
Companies Act 2017.
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4.    Deduction of Withholding Tax from Dividend U/S 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001:

(i) The rates of deduction of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for payment of
dividend are as follows

1. Rate of tax deduction for the filer(s) of income tax return 15%.
2. Rate of tax deduction for the non-filer(s) of income tax return 30%.

To enable the company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15%  instead of 30%,
shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax-payers list  (ATL) provided on the website of FBR,
despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to  immediately make sure that their names are entered in ATL,
otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @ 30% instead of 15%.

(ii) Further, according to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), withholding tax will be determined
separately on 'Filer/Non-Filer' status of Principal shareholder as well as joint-holder(s) based on their  shareholding
proportions, in case of  joint accounts.

In this regard, all shareholders who hold such shares jointly, are requested to provide shareholding proportions of
Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them  to our Share Registrar in writing as follow:

5.    Requirement of Valid Tax Exemption Certificate for Claiming Exemption from Withholding Tax:

As per FBR Circulars No. 1(29) WHT/2006 dated June 30, 2010 and No. 1(43) DG (WHT) 2008-Vol-II-66417-R dated
May 12, 2015 the valid exemption certificate is mandatory to claim exemption  of withholding tax U/S 150 of the Income
Tax Ordinance 2001 (tax on dividend amount) where the statutory exemption under clause 47B of Part-IV of Second
Schedule is available. The shareholder who fall in the category mentioned in the above clause and want to avail
exemption U/S 150 of the Ordinance, must provide Valid Tax Exemption Certificate to our Share Registrar.

In case of those shareholders who are non-residents are requested to please provide their respective detail including
residence status /country of residence with copy of their NICOP to our Share Registrars before book closure. In case
of non availability of status in their respective portfolio, the respective tax on dividends would be applicable.

6. Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically:

As per provision of Section 242 of Companies Act, 2017 any dividend payable in cash 'shall only be paid through
electronic mode directly in to the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. A notice of the foregoing
seeking information from shareholders for payment of dividend through electronic mode was sent earlier. The shareholders
are now once again requested to provide their folio number, name and details of bank account including bank name,
branch name, branch code and address, Account number, Title of Account and IBAN/swift code in which they desire
their dividend to be credited, failing which the Company will be unable to pay the dividend through any other mode.
Standard request form has also been placed on website of the Company. The members are requested to send the
information on the same at the earliest possible.

In case shares are held in CDC then the form must be submitted directly to shareholder's broker/participant CDC
Investor account services.

7. Unclaimed Dividend / Shares :

Shareholders who could not collect their dividend/physical shares are advised to contact our Share Registrar to
collect/enquire about their unclaimed dividend or shares, if any. In compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act,
2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure, all such dividend and shares outstanding for a period of 3 years
or more from the date due and payable shall be deposited to the credit of Federal Government in case of unclaimed
dividends and shares, shall be delivered to the SECP.
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8. Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts through Email/CD/DVD/ USB :

Pursuant to the directions issued by the SECP vide SRO 787(1) 2014 dated September 8, 2014 and SRO 470(1)/2016
dated May 31, 2016 whereby Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has directed and Shareholders
of the company in the 38th Annual General Meeting held on January 31, 2017 approved to circulate Annual Audited
Accounts (i.e. Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss Accounts, Statement of Comprehensive
income, Statement of cash follows, notes to the Financial Statement, Auditor's and Director's Reports) along with notice
of Annual General Meeting to its members through e-mail /CD/DVD/USB/ at their registered Addresses.

Shareholders who wish to receive the printed / hard copy of Financial Statements shall have to fill the standard request
form available on the Company's website www.shahmuradsugar.co

9. Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Accounts.

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing company shall be required to replace its physical shares
with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the Commission, within a period
not exceeding four years from commencement of the companies Act,

The shareholders having physical shareholding may open CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or investor's
account directly with the CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less form. This will facilitate them in many ways
including safe custody and sale of shares, anytime they want as the trading of physical shares is not permitted as per
existing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange.

10. Financial Statements and relevant reports have been placed on the website of the company which can be seen
on www.shahmuradsugar.co

11. Video Conference Facility and Attendance:

As per directive of SECP Members may attend the Meeting virtually. To attend the Meeting virtually, a Member is
required to send an e-mail to agm.shsml@alnoorgroup.co with e-mail address, name, folio number, CNIC Number,
Cell number and number of shares held in his / her name with subject "Registration for AGM of  SHSML". A video link
to join the Meeting will be shared with Members whose e-mails, containing all the required particulars, are received
not later than 48 (forty-eight) hours before the time of the Meeting.

12. Change of Address and Non-Deduction of Zakat Declaration Form:

Shareholders are requested to inform the Company's Share Registrar, M/s. C & K Management  Associates (Pvt.)
Limited, 404-Trade Tower, Abdullah Haroon Road, Near Metropole Hotel, Karachi  of any change in their addresses
and provide their non-deduction of zakat declaration Form  immediately

Note: In compliance of circular SMD/SE/2(20)/2021/117 dated 15th December, 2021 by the Commission members

are requested to adhere with the following guidelines is case they wish to attend the meeting physically:

1) Vaccination Certificate has to be checked while entering the premises for attending the meeting physically.

2) Members are requested to send their vaccination certificates at the registered office or email us at

agm.shsml@alnoorgroup.co at least two days before holding of an AGM to be held on Thursday, 27th January.

2022 at 11:30 a.m. for making the arrangements accordingly.

3) Wearing of mask during the entire meeting is mandatory.

4) Accompanying children or any person who is not eligible to attend the meeting is strictly prohibited.

5) Please follow the seating arrangement as per social distancing norms in the meeting area.

6) Members with even mild cough or low-grade fever are prohibited to attend the meeting.

For any query/clarification/information, the shareholder may contact the company. And/or the Share Registrar.



CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW REPORT

It gives me immense pleasure to present to you the 43rd Annual Report of the Company for the year ended

September 30, 2021 and review of the financial performance of the Company and of the Board. The period

under review has been immensely challenging due to continuous presence of Corona Virus which has caused

an economic slowdown globally. Despite immense challenges in the foregoing period, Alhamdulillah the Company

was able to achieve sound results mainly due to its diversified portfolio, export sales and measures taken by

the Board to control costs. I believe that the processes adopted in developing and reviewing the overall corporate

strategy and achievement of organizational goals are commendable which are truly reflected in the performance

of the Company.

Shahmurad Sugar Mills Limited complies with all the requirements set out in the Companies Act 2017 and listed

companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations with respect to the composition of Board of Directors

and procedure of meetings of Board and its committees. As required under the Code of Corporate Governance

evaluation of the Board is carried on self assessment basis in order to ensure that the Board's overall performance

and effectiveness is measured against expectations set in the Code.

The Company continued to fulfill its corporate social responsibilities and contributed positively to the environment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to acknowledge the contribution of all our employees and

stakeholders to the success of the Company. I look forward to and pray to ALLAH SWT for the continued success

and growth of the Company.

Karachi

December 23, 2021
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DIRECTORS� REPORT

IN THE NAME OF ALLAH THE MOST GRACIOUS AND MOST MERCIFUL

Dear Members Asslamu Alaikum

I take the opportunity with great pleasure to present to you on behalf of the Board of Directors with the audited financial
statements of your company along with Auditors' report for the year ended September 30, 2021.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW:

SUGAR DIVISION:

Alhamdulillah, the performance of the company was satisfactory. During the period under review the recovery rate reduced
from 11.00 percent to 10.70 percent which was due to lower quality of sugar cane. The sugar produced was 47,220 metric
tons which was 3.21 percent lower than the previous year's production of 48,786 metric tons. This was due to lower crushing
volume due to non-availability of raw material and decline in the recovery rate. It is anticipated that during the next year
the crop of sugar cane would improve marginally in the country. In Shah Allah.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 2020-21  2019-20

                                                                                                                                               (Rupees in thousands)

Profit before taxation 298,439 931,588 

Provision for taxation (162,773) (171,273)

Profit after taxation 135,666    760,315 

Earnings per share Rs.6.42   Rs.36.00

 Your company has earned a profit after tax amounting to Rs.135.666 million as against a profit of Rs.760.315 million earned
during the previous year. The principal activity of your company is to manufacture sugar and ethanol.

Salient comparative production and financial data are provided as under:

OPERATIONAL RESULTS: 2020-21 2019-20

Sugarcane crushed (metric tons) 441,293 444,430

Sugar produced (metric tons) 47,220 48,786

Sugar recovery rate (percentage) 10.70 11.00

Molasses produced (metric tons) 19,740 19,715

Ethanol produced (metric tons) 42,643 47,608

FINANCIAL DATA:                                                                                                                (Rupees in thousands)

Sales 9,934,493   11,143,607 

Cost of sales (9,172,383)    (9,551,967)

Gross profit 762,110      1,591,640

Distribution cost (43,368)          (14,777)

Administrative expenses (255,575)        (245,866)

Other expenses (87,000)        (129,844)

Financial cost (366,619) (344,024)

Other income 289,059             74,744

Share of loss in associate (168) (285)

Profit before tax 298,439          931,588
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ETHANOL DIVISION:

During the period under consideration ethanol plant operated satisfactorily and produced 42,643 metric tons of ethanol as

compared to 47,608 metric tons produced last year. The production is lower by 10.43 percent when compared with the

production of last year. The decrease in production of ethanol was due to lower demand from European countries as a result

of corona virus. Your company exported 39,690 metric tons of ethanol as against 45,807 metric tons exported last year and

the company earned valuable foreign exchange for the country. The management has worked extensively to develop a

portfolio of various products mixes in order to ensure optimum utilization of the plant capacity.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE BEST

PRACTICES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

1. The Financial Statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its states of affairs, the results

of operations, cash flow and changes in equity.

2. The Company has maintained proper books of accounts as required under the law.

3. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting

estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

4. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial

statements.

5. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

6. There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as going concern.

7. There has been no material departure from the best practices of the Code of Corporate Governance as detailed in

the Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange.

8. There have been no outstanding statutory payments, except those under normal course of business and some

disputed cases which are appearing in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

9. The pattern of shareholding in the Company as on September 30, 2021 is also included in the Annual Report.

10. The Directors, Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, their spouses or minor children carried

out no trade in the shares of the Company except as otherwise indicated.

11. The value of investment and balance in deposit accounts of Provident Fund based on un-audited accounts as at

June 30, 2021 amounted to Rs.85.546 million out of total assets of Rs.90.399 million.

The key operating and financial data of the last ten years and pattern of shareholding have been included in the Annual

Report. There has been no significant change in the holding of directors or their spouses except otherwise indicated.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

During the period under review there has been no change in the composition of Board of Directors.
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01. Mr. Noor Muhammad Zakaria 3 Non-Executive

02. Mr. Zia Zakaria 4 Executive

03. Mr. A. Aziz Ayoob 4 Executive

04. Mrs. Sanober Hamid Zakaria 4 Non-Executive

05. Mr. Asad Ahmad Mohiuddin 4 Non Executive

06. Mr. Naeem Ahmad Shafi 4 Independent Director

07. Mr. Khurram Aftab 4 Independent Director

Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee have also been determined by the Board in accordance with the guidelines
provided in the Listing Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Board has also constituted Human Resource and Remuneration Committee in accordance with the guide lines provided
in the Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited consisting of the following Directors.

1. Mr. Naeem Ahmad Shafi (Chairman) 4 Independent Director

2. Mr. Noor Muhammad Zakaria 3 Non-executive

3. Mrs. Sanober Hamid Zakaria 4 Non-executive

STATUSATTENDEDNAME OF DIRECTORS

During the period under consideration four meetings of the Board were held and presence of each director was as under.

The details of remuneration of executive and non-executive directors have also been provided in the relevant note to the
financial statements as required under the Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange. No remuneration is paid to non-
executive directors except meeting fee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Board has also constituted an Audit Committee comprising of the following directors. During the period under consideration,
four meetings of the Audit Committee were held and attendance of each director was as under:

During the period, one meeting of the Committee was held and all the directors attended the meeting.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY:

As per articles of the Company, the Board of Directors is authorized to fix remuneration of executive and non-executive and
independent Directors. Approval of members in general meeting is required in accordance with the articles of the Company
and Companies Act 2017. The Board of Directors has developed a Directors' Remuneration Policy which describes in detail,
the objectives and sets a transparent procedure for determination of the remuneration packages of individual director.
Salient features, amongst other, of Directors' Remuneration Policy include that the level of remuneration shall be competitive
and sufficient to attract and retain qualified and skilled individuals. Details of the aggregate amount of remuneration of
executive and non-executive directors are disclosed in note No. 39 to the financial statements.

FUTURE OUTLOOK:

SUGAR DIVISION

The government of Sind has notified the price of sugarcane at Rs.250/= per forty kgs as against Rs.202/= notified last year.
The following notification has been challenged in the Sindh High Court as there is Rs. 25/- difference between notified price
in Punjab and Sindh.

1. Mr. Khurram Aftab Chairman Independent Director

2. Mr. Noor Muhammad Zakaria Member Non-Executive Director

3. Mr. Zia Zakaria Member Executive Director
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Sugarcane crop is better in the country due to attractive return to the growers during the last two years. Further improvement
is expected in September 2021 plantation and onward. Shortage of water in Sindh is a major constraint. Crushing season
2021-22 has commenced and it is expected that the production of sugar would be 15 percent greater than last year. In order
to run the mill economically, sugarcane is procured from far area and transportation cost increase cost of production.

ETHANOL DIVISION:

The availability of molasses is expected to be better due to a larger cane crop in the country. The price of ethanol is range
bound and there is uncertainty due to new strain of corona virus.  The management is aggressively pursuing various avenues
to develop product mixes which would help improve the profit margin of ethanol division.

CREDIT RATING OF THE COMPANY:

VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has assigned initial medium to long term entity rating of 'A-/A-2' (Single A minus/ A-
two) to the Company an outlook on medium to long term rating as "stable".

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The company is committed to accomplish its Corporate and Social Responsibility (CSR) goals and continued to take initiatives
by supporting education, healthcare, environments and other social causes around the Mills area in order to bring improvement
in the lives of lesser privileged communities of the area. The Company undertook continuously numbers of welfare activities
in its franchise area i.e. established a school up to secondary level, holding of medical camps on interval basis, financial
assistance to deserving villagers, provided fertilizer and seed to growers, supply of free ration and medical assistance to
needy persons.

ENVIRONMENTS AND COMPANY'S BUSINESS:

The management is well aware of its responsibilities towards maintaining good environment so that its negative impacts
can be eliminated and it is committed to sustainable development of the society. Your company is determined to minimize
environmental impact by reducing waste and emissions and conduct its business with the highest concern for health and
safety of its employees, customers, suppliers, neighbors and the general public. The management initiates tree plantation
drives to support the environment within the community.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS:

All related parties transactions carried out during the period are placed before the Board's Audit Committee and the Board
for final approval as required under the Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange. Related parties transactions carried
out at arm's length price as provided in Companies Act 2017.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER:

The company is also enhancing the resources of the country in the form of taxes, duties and earning foreign exchange
through export of sugar as when allowed by the Government and ethanol in order to reduce trade deficit being faced by
the country. During the period under review your company has exported 39,672 metric tons of ethanol and earned valuable
foreign exchangefor the country.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND OPPORTUNITIES:

The Company operates in a challenging environment and the management has set up an effective mechanism for identification,
evaluation and mitigation of risk which enables smooth operation and  ensures that focus remains on business growth.

CREDIT RISK:

The company usually sells the products against advance payments but in case of credit sale proper due diligence of customers
is exercised to whom credit is extended.

MARKET RISK:

The company is exposed to risk of changes in the price of its raw materials and finished products. This is managed by
planning of stock levels and continuous monitoring of markets for purchases and sales through various sources at time and
intervals found appropriate.
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LIQUIDITY RISK:

The Company managed working capital requirements from various banks to cater to the mismatch between sales receipts
and payment for purchases in order to meet its business obligations. The Board periodically reviews major risk faced by
the business and take necessary actions in order to mitigate the risk. Audit Committee also reviews the financial and
compliance risks. The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee reviews the compensation and reward policies to
ensure that these are competitive and effective for retention and attraction of talented and experienced staff.

MECHANISM FOR EVALUATION OF THE BOARD:

The Board and Board's committees� members are highly experienced personnel and continuously striving to improve their
effectiveness and undertake annual review to assess the Board's performance. The Board also reviews the developments
taking place in the corporate sector and governance to ensure that the company remains aligned with the best practices.

DIVIDEND:

The Directors have recommended a final cash dividend at the rate of 30 percent .i.e. Rs. 3.00 per share of Rs.10/= each.
(2020: 120 percent .i.e. Rs.12.00 per share of Rs. 10/= each)

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS:

The present Auditors, M/s Kreston Hyder Bhimji and Company, Chartered Accountants, will stand retired with the conclusion
of Annual General Meeting for the year 2021 and being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment for the year
2021-22. Audit Committee also recommended their re-appointment for the year 2021-22 and the Board of your company
also endorsed the recommendation of the Audit Committee for re-appointment of M/s Kreston Hyder Bhimji and Company,
Chartered Accountants, till the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting.

STAFF RELATIONS:

Finally the directors place on record their appreciation for devotion of duty and hard work of the executives, staff members
and workers for the smooth running of the company's affairs, meeting the objectives and targets in the current demanding
environments and are confident that they will continue to demonstrate the same zeal and vigor in future under the blessing
of our Creator.

By order of the Board

Karachi

Dated: December 23, 2021

ZIA  ZAKARIA
Managing Director & CEO

A. AZIZ AYOOB
Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS 2019
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per following:

Following the election of Directors, the Board was reconstituted on March 28, 2019 comprising of seven directors
including two independent directors. One third of seven comes to 2.33 and the fraction was not rounded upward to
one  to have three independent directors in observance of general mathematic principle.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director for more than seven listed companies,
including this company;

4. The company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date
of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the
Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the Board.

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act
and these Regulations.

9. Since the Chairman and all the directors except the lady director, have prescribed education and experience required
for exemption under clause 19(2) of the CCG Regulations accordingly they are exempted from attending directors
training program pursuant to clause 19(2) of the CCG Regulations. One director would be provided the facility to
acquire the certification during the year.

10. The Board has approved the appointment of Chief Financial Officer, (CFO) including his remuneration and terms
and condition of employment and complied with the relevant requirements of the Regulations. The remuneration,
terms and conditions of the employment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit and any change
thereto have been approved by the Board.

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the
Board;

a) Male 6

b) Female 1

 2. The composition of Board is as follow:

(a) Independent director:
i) Mr. Naeem Ahmad Shafi
ii) Mr. Khurram Aftab

(b) Non-Executive directors:
i) Mr. Noor Mohammad Zakaria
ii) Mrs. Sanobar Hamid Zakaria
iii) Mr. Asad Ahmed Mohiuddin

(c) Executive directors:
i) Mr. Zia Zakaria
iii) Mr. Aziz Ayoob
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NOOR MOHAMMAD ZAKARIA
Chairman

Karachi:  December 23, 2021

ZIA ZAKARIA
Chief Executive Officer

a) Audit Committee:
Mr. Naeem Ahmad Shafi Chairman
Mr. Noor Mohammad Zakaria Member
Mrs. Sanobar Hamid Zakaria Member

b) HR and Remuneration Committee:
Mr. Khurram Aftab Chairman
Mr. Noor Mohammad Zakaria Member
Mr. Zia Zakaria Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee
for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following,-

a) Audit Committee Four quarterly meetings including annual meeting
b) HR and Remuneration Committee One annual meeting 

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function in the company managed by qualified and experience
professional, who are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company and industry's best practices.
They are involved in the internal audit function on full time basis. The head of internal audit department functionally
reports to the Board's Audit Committee

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the
Quality Control Review Program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent
and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company
secretary or director of the company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except
in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed
that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied
with; and

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are below.

i. The requirement of Nomination Committee is optional in regulation no 29. The Bard takes care of the responsibilities
prescribed for Nomination Committee so a separate Nomination Committee is not considered necessary.

ii. The requirement of Risk Nomination committee is optional in regulation no 30. The risk management is carried
at the overall company's level by the executive management of the Company by the CEO. The Company's
management monitors potential risk and risk management procedures are  carried out to identify, access and
mitigate any identified or potential risk. The Board is also apprised from time to time about the risks and their
management. Therefore , it is not considered necessary to have a separate committee in this respect.

iii. Since the requirement with respect to disclosure of significant policies on the website is optional in regulation
No. 35(1), the company has uploaded only limited information in this respect on the company's website. However
significant related information in respect of salient policies are disclosed in the annual reports of the Company
which are duly uploaded on the website and are available for every one assessing the website. The company
will however, review and place key elements of the policies if considered necessary.
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12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below;-



KEY OPERATION & FINANCIAL DATA FOR LAST TEN YEARS

FINANCIAL POSITION:

Share capital  211,187  211,187  211,187  211,187  211,187  211,187  211,187  211,187  211,187  211,187

Revenue reserves  3,141,065  3,178,204  2,690,419  1,750,761  920,125  937,213  858,025 736,114  521,769  442,188

Surplus on revaluation  1,309,151  1,389,650  1,476,197  1,582,959  546,707  568,724  587,964 611,888  416,220  431,487

of fixed assets

Long-term financing  895,100  1,163,612  1,340,813  1,659,686  1,542,234  756,942  774,675 761,669  726,251  817,157

Deferred taxation  70,279  17,212  (25,726)  (68,700)  (81,034)  53,862  56,458 28,842  24,831  70,877

Current liabilities  4,304,474  5,351,671  4,672,241  4,925,666  3,456,917  1,428,785  2,642,076 2,318,096  1,901,805  2,336,772

Operating assets  5,260,906  5,386,952  5,498,699  5,315,321  3,052,313  2,541,075  2,424,275 2,425,608  2,141,973  2,149,828

Long-term deposits  2,429  2,429  2,429  2,429  2,429  2,428  2,395 2,390  2,390  2,532

Long-term investment  958  1,006  1,351  1,815  2,673  3,097  3,759 5,101  4,346  4,130

Current assets  4,665,568  5,919,925  4,860,438  4,529,303  3,537,186  1,407,923  2,696,867 2,229,376  1,646,273  2,150,986

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Turnover  9,934,493  11,143,607  9,497,552  7,220,127  5,055,682  5,909,743  5,199,162 5,353,972  5,642,437  5,362,004

Gross profit  762,110  1,591,640  2,010,195  810,408  583,894  670,379  805,191 884,146  606,322  695,891

Operating profit  665,226  1,275,897  1,705,403  783,430  128,636  343,522  541,563 616,908  395,721  462,591

Profit/(Loss) before tax  298,439  931,588  1,354,532  548,249  (74,397)  170,136  262,783 243,411  84,281  111,079

Profit after tax  135,666  760,556  1,205,546  601,258  7,268  125,148  184,723 226,741  91,611  145,344

Earning per share  6.42  36.00  57.08  28.47  0.34  5.93  8.75 10.74  4.34  6.88

Cash dividend 30% 120% 170% 70% 5% 24% 35% 43% 15% 15%

Bonus shares  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL

SUGAR PRODUCTION

Cane Crushed (M.Tons)  441,293  444,430  500,270  744,578  672,747  496,109  596,006 666,887  561,083  566,077

Sugar Produced (M.Tons)  47,220  48,786  55,425  82,366  72,755  52,578  65,791 71,473  59,343  57,077

Recovery (%) 10.70% 11.00% 11.08% 11.06% 10.82% 10.60% 11.02% 10.72% 10.58% 10.09%

(Rupees in thousand)

2021 201220142015 20132020 201620172018
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Independent Auditor's Review Report to the Members of Shahmurad Sugar
Mills Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate

Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate

Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Shahmurad Sugar Mills

Limited (the Company) for the year ended September 30, 2021 in accordance with the requirements of regulation

36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our

responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance

with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the

requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and

review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting

and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not

required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls

or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance

procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the

Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions.

We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the

related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of

Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the

requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended September 30,

2021.

Suite No. 1601, 16th Floor, Kashif Centre, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. Phone: 92-21-35640050 to 52 Fax: 92-21-35640053,

Website: www.krestonhb.com E-mail: hyderbhimji@yahoo.com, hyderbhimji@gmail.com

OTHER OFFICES LAHORE - FAISALABAD - ISLAMABAD

A member of kreston international A global network of independent accounting firms.

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Dated: December 23, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SHAHMURAD SUGAR MILLS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Suite No. 1601, 16th Floor, Kashif Centre, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. Phone: 92-21-35640050 to 52 Fax: 92-21-35640053,

Website: www.krestonhb.com E-mail: hyderbhimji@yahoo.com, hyderbhimji@gmail.com

OTHER OFFICES LAHORE - FAISALABAD - ISLAMABAD

A member of kreston international A global network of independent accounting firms.

S.No. Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

     1. Borrowings

The Company has significant amounts of borrowings
from Banks and other financial institutions amounting
to Rs. 4,310.302 million, being 82% of total liabilities,
as at reporting date.

Given the significant level of borrowings, finance costs,
the disclosure given by the management in financial
statements and compliance with various loan covenants,
this is considered to be a key audit matter. (Refer Notes
3.11, 20 and 24 to the financial statements).

Our audit procedures included:
� Review of loan agreements and facility letters

to ascertain the terms and conditions of
repayment, rates of markup used and
disclosed by management for finance costs
and to ensure that the borrowings have been
approved at appropriate level.

� Verification of disbursement of loans and
utilization on sample basis. Review of charge
registration documents.

� Verification of repayments made by the
Company during the year on sample basis
to confirm that repayments are being made
on time and no default has been made.

� Understating and assessing procedures
designed by management to comply with
the debt covenants and performing covenant
tests on sample basis.

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Shahmurad Sugar Mills Limited, (''the Company'') which comprise
the statement of financial position as at September 30, 2021, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial
position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at September 30, 2021 and of
the profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan ("the Code") and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matter. Following are the
Key audit matters:
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S.No. Key audit matter

     2. Recognition of Revenue

The company is engaged in the production and sale of
sugar and ethanol.

The Company recognized revenue (net of sales tax
and commission) from the sales of sugar and ethanol
of Rs 9,934.493 million for the year ended 30 September
2021.

We identified recognition of revenue as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Company and gives rise to an inherent
risk that revenue could be subject to misstatement to
meet expectations or targets and that during the year
IFRS 15 "Revenue from contracts with customers"
became applicable to the Company which states that
"revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the
Company satisfies its performance obligation by
transferring the promised goods to customer under the
contract with customer."

(Refer to note 3.15 and 27 to the financial statements).

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue included the following:

� Obtaining an understanding of the process
relating to recognition of revenue and
assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls over recording of revenue.

� Assessing the appropriateness of the
Company's accounting policies for revenue
recognition and compliance of those policies
with applicable accounting standards
including management's assessment of
impact of IFRS 15.

� Obtaining an understanding of the nature
of the revenue contracts entered into by the
Company, testing a sample of sales contracts
to confirm our understanding and assessing
whether or not management's application
of IFRS 15 requirements was in accordance
with the standard.

� Performing analytical procedures and test
of details by selecting sample of transactions
for comparing with sales orders, sales
invoices, delivery orders and other underlying
records.

� Comparing a sample of revenue transactions
recorded around the year end with the sales
orders, sales invoices, delivery orders and
other relevant underlying documentation to
assess if the related revenue was recorded
in the appropriate accounting period.

� Reviewing the adequacy of disclosure as
required under applicable financial reporting
framework.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

� Obtaining confirmation from Banks and other
lenders of the Company to confirm balances,
terms and conditions stated in the terms
sheets and compliance thereof.

� Performing analyt ical  procedures,
recalculations and other related procedures
for verification of finance costs.

� Ensuring that the outstanding liabilities have
been properly classified and related
securities and other terms are adequately
disclosed in the financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
report of the Company, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

� Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control.

� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

� Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.
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� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn
up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company's business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the company
and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Shaikh Mohammad Tanvir.

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Date: December 23, 2021



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Note

2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 4  5,260,906  5,386,952
Intangible asset 5  -    -
Long term investment 6  958  1,006
Long term loans 7  1,395  1,224
Long term deposits 8  2,429  2,429

 5,265,688  5,391,611
CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spares 9  297,350  247,329
Stock-in-trade 10  3,574,691  1,603,448
Trade debts 11  415,500  207,178
Loans and advances 12  155,596  1,467,802
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 13  1,442  457
Other receivables 14  117,555  176,689
Short term investment 15  376  2,103,781
Income tax refundable-net of provision  49,297  76,852
Cash and bank balances 16  53,761  36,389

 4,665,568  5,919,925

 9,931,256  11,311,536

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised capital
25,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each  250,000  250,000

Issued, subscribed and  paid-up capital 17  211,187  211,187
Revenue reserve
General reserve 18  80,000  80,000
Share of associate's unrealised loss on remeasurement of its investment
   at fair value through other comprehensive income  (2,381)  (2,501)
Unappropriated profit  3,063,446  3,100,705

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 19  1,309,151  1,389,650
 4,661,403  4,779,041

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing 20  895,100  1,163,612
Deferred taxation 21  70,279  17,212

 965,379  1,180,824

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 22  798,875  1,328,710
Accrued finance cost 23  30,270  31,816
Short term borrowings 24  3,176,979  3,641,288
Loan from related parties 25  48,135  48,135
Unclaimed dividend  11,992  9,599
Current portion of long term financing 20  238,223  292,123

 4,304,474  5,351,671

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 26  -    -

 9,931,256  11,311,536

The annexed notes 01 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ZIA ZAKARIA
Managing Director & CEO

ZAID ZAKARIA
Chief Financial Officer

AZIZ AYOOB
Director
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Sales 27  9,934,493  11,143,607

Cost of sales 28  (9,172,383)  (9,551,967)

Gross profit  762,110  1,591,640

Profit from trading activities 29  442  1,132
 762,552  1,592,772

Distribution cost 30  (43,368)  (14,777)
Administrative expenses 31  (255,575)  (245,866)
Other expenses 32  (87,000)  (129,844)

 (385,943)  (390,487)

Other income 33  288,617  73,612

Operating profit  665,226  1,275,897

Finance cost 34  (366,619)  (344,024)

 298,607  931,873

Share of loss in associate 6  (168)  (285)

Profit before taxation  298,439  931,588

Provision for taxation 35  (162,773)  (171,273)

Profit after taxation  135,666  760,315

Earning per share - Basic and diluted 36  6.42  36.00

The annexed notes 01 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Note

2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)

ZIA ZAKARIA
Managing Director & CEO

ZAID ZAKARIA
Chief Financial Officer

AZIZ AYOOB
Director
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Profit after taxation  135,666  760,315

Other comprehensive income

Items that shall not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss  -

Share of associate's unrealised gain / (loss) on remeasurement of
its investment at fair value through other comprehensive income 6.2  120  (60)

Total comprehensive income for the year  135,786  760,255

The annexed notes 01 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)

Note

ZIA ZAKARIA
Managing Director & CEO

ZAID ZAKARIA
Chief Financial Officer

AZIZ AYOOB
Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

�������.....��� Rupees in thousand �������.....���

Issued,
Subscribed
& paid up

capital

General
reserves

Share of
associate's
unrealized

(loss)/ Gain on
remeasurement
of investment

Un-appropriated
profit

Total

Revaluation
surplus on

property, plant
and equipment

Balance as at October 01, 2019  211,187  80,000  (2,441)  2,612,860  1,476,197  4,377,803

During the year ended September 30, 2020

Transaction with owners
Final dividend for 30-September-2019 @ Rs. 17 per Share  -    -    -    (359,017)  -    (359,017)

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year  -    -    (60)  760,315  -    760,255

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property, plant 
and equipment on account of incremental depreciation
net of deferred tax  -    -    -    86,547  (86,547)  -

Balance as at September 30, 2020  211,187  80,000  (2,501)  3,100,705  1,389,650  4,779,041

Balance as at October 01, 2020  211,187  80,000  (2,501)  3,100,705  1,389,650  4,779,041

During the year ended September 30, 2021

Transaction with owners
Final dividend for 30-September-2020 @ Rs. 12 per Share  -    -    -    (253,424)  -    (253,424)

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    120  135,666  -    135,786

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property, plant  -    -    -    80,499  (80,499)  -
and equipment on account of incremental depreciation
net of deferred tax

Balance as at September 30, 2021  211,187  80,000  (2,381)  3,063,446  1,309,151  4,661,403

The annexed notes 01 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ZIA ZAKARIA
Managing Director & CEO

ZAID ZAKARIA
Chief Financial Officer

AZIZ AYOOB
Director
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)

Note

ZIA ZAKARIA
Managing Director & CEO

ZAID ZAKARIA
Chief Financial Officer

AZIZ AYOOB
Director

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation  298,439  931,588

Adjustment for:

Depreciation 4.1.1  355,646  372,285

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 33  (8,991)  (1,434)

Liabilities written back 33  (177,610)  -

Impairment allowance for obsolescence and slow moving items 32  4,100  10,856

Impairment allowance for export subsidy 32  58,695  58,695

Finance cost 34  366,619  344,024

Share of loss in associate 6  168  285

 953,847  784,711

Cash generated before working capital changes  1,252,286  1,716,299

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Stores, spare parts and loose tools  (54,121)  (14,595)

Stock in trade  (1,971,243)  364,411

Trade debts  (208,322)  252,393

Loans and advances  1,312,206  118,532

Trade deposits and short term prepayments  (985)  638

Other receivables  439  (254)

 (922,026)  721,125

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables  (352,225)  221,946

Short term borrowings  (464,309)  528,458

 (1,171,754)  750,404

 (841,494)  3,187,828

Receipts / (payments) for

Income tax  (82,151)  (101,291)

Finance cost  (368,165)  (352,024)

Long term loans - net  (171)  990

 (450,487)  (452,325)

Net cash inflows from operating activities  (1,291,981)  2,735,503

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property, plant and equipment  (232,594)  (261,343)

Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 4.1.2  11,985  2,239

Net cash (outflow) from investing activities  (220,609)  (259,104)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of long term financing 20.1  (322,412)  (243,638)

Dividend paid  (251,031)  (355,554)

Net cash (outflow) from financing activities  (573,443)  (599,192)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (2,086,033)  1,877,207

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  2,140,170  262,963

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year  54,137  2,140,170

Cash and cash Equivalent

- Short term investment 15  376  2,103,781

- Cash and bank balances 16  53,761  36,389

 54,137  2,140,170

The annexed notes 01 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

1 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company on April 9, 1979. Its shares are quoted at
the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office of the Company is located at 96-A, Sindhi Muslim
Cooperative Housing Society, Karachi, Sindh.

The Company owns and operates Sugar and Ethanol manufacturing units which are located at Jhok, District Sujawal
in the Province of Sindh. The total area of factory land which includes the main factory is 333.32 Acres.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the �historical cost convention� except otherwise specifically
stated in these financial statments. The Company uses accrual basis of accounting except for cash flow statement.

2.2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

   - International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standard
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

   - Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.3 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These financial statements have been prepared in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency.

2.4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and
in any future periods as appropriate. In the process of applying the accounting policies, management makes following
estimates and judgments which are significant to the financial statements:

a) Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful life and residual value used in the calculation
of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of asset is made for possible
impairment. In making these estimates, the Company uses technical resources available with the Company. The
company also uses judgements and estimates in determining fair values of items carried at revalued amounts. Any
change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and
equipment, with corresponding effects on the depreciation and impairment.
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b) Stock-in-trade

The Company reviews the net realizable value of stock in trade to assess any diminution in the respective carrying
values. Net realizable value is estimated with reference to the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

c) Taxation

In making the estimate for income tax payable by the Company, the Company takes into account the applicable tax
laws and decision by appellate authorities on certain issues in past. Due weightage is given to past history while
determining the ratio of future export sales for the purposes of calculating deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses and credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which such losses and credits can be utilized. Significant management judgment is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

d) Impairment of financial assets

The Company reviews the recoverability of its financial assets i.e. trade debts, loans, deposits, short term investments,
and other receivables to assess amount of doubtful debts and allowance required there against on annual basis.
While determining impairment allowance, the Company considers financial health, market and economic information,
aging of receivables, credit worthiness, credit rating, lifetime expected losses, past records and business relationship.

e) Impairment - non-financial assets

The Company reviews carrying amount of assets periodically to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
If such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated and impairment losses are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

f) Stores, spare parts and loose tools with respect to impairment allowance for obsolescence and slow moving
items

The estimates of slow moving and obsolete stores, spare parts and loose tools, are made, using and appropriately
judging the relevant inputs and applying the parameters i.e. age analysis, physical condition, obsolescence, etc. as
the management considers appropriate, which, on actual occurrence of  the subsequent event, may fluctuate. The
effect  of variation is accounted for as and when it takes place.

g) Contingencies

The assessment of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the future
events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates
the value of contingent assets and liabilities which may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain
future event(s).

2.5 STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARD AND INTERPRETATIONS

2.5.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that became
effective during the year

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended September 30, 2021.
These standards, interpretations and amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not
expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.
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Amendment to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, including
amendments to references to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards.

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Amendment regarding the
definition of business.

Amendment to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial statements' and IAS 8 'Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - Amendments regarding
the definition of material.

Amendments to IAS 39, IFRS 7 & IFRS 9 - The amendment will effect entities that
apply the hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 pr IAS 39 to hedging relationship
directly affected by the interest rate benchmark reform.

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

January 01, 2020

2.5.2 New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or
after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not
relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after

Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covid-19 related rent concessions extended
beyond June 30, 2021

Interest Rate Benchmark Reforms - Phase 2 (Amendment to IFRS 4, IFRS 7,
IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 39)

Amendment to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendment to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' - Proceeds before intended
use

Amendment to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets'
- Onerous Contract - cost of fulfilling a contract

Amendment to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current

January 01, 2021

January 01, 2021

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2023

In addition there are certain other amendments that are also either not relevant or have any impact.

Certain other amendments and improvements to existing standards have also become effective which are not relevant
or do not have significant impact



2.5.3 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
adopted by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

IFRS � 1 First Time Adoption of IFRS

IFRS � 17 Insurance Contracts

"IASB Effective Date'

Effective for the accounting

period beginning on or after"

January 1, 2004

January 1, 2021
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Principal accounting policies adopted are set out below:

3.1 Property Plant and Equipment

a) Operating assets

Recognition/measurement

Operating fixed assets except furniture, fixture & fittings, office equipment and vehicles are stated at revalued amounts
less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Furniture, fixture & fittings and vehicles are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged  to income applying the reducing balance method over the expected useful lives of the assets
at the rates specified in assets note no. 4.1. Depreciation on additions is charged from the quarter in which the assets
are put to use while no Depreciation is charged in the quarter in which the assets are disposed off. 

Subsequent cost

The costs of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the part will flow to the Company and its cost
can be measured reliably. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized when it is probable that respective future
economic benefits will flow to the Company. The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Revaluation surplus

Revaluation of freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery is carried out with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation increase
in the carrying amount of freehold land, factory and non-factory buildings on freehold land and plant and machinery
is recognized, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as
"Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment" except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
/ deficit for the same asset previously recognized in statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first
recognized in statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that reverse
previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining
surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to statement of profit or loss. The revaluation reserve
is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders. Each year, the difference between depreciation based
on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss and depreciation based on the
asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment  is derecognized on disposal; or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment is included in statement of profit or loss when the item is derecognized.



b) Capital work-in-progress

Capital  work-in-progress is stated  at cost accumulated up to the reporting date less impairment if any and represents
costs / expenditures incurred on property, plant and equipment during the course of construction, installation and
implementation, etc. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for intended use.

3.2 Intangible Asset

Intangible assets acquired by the company are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment if any.
Amortization is charged to income on straight line basis over the period specified in note 5. 

3.3 Investment in Associates

The Investment in associates, where the company has significant influence, is accounted for under equity method.
Under this method, the investment is initially recognized at cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognize the Company's share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition which is recognized
in the statement of profit or loss. Dividend received, if any, reduces the carrying amount of investment. Changes in
associate's equity including those arising from the revaluation of property, plant and equipment are recognized directly
in the Company's equity in proportion of the equity held.

Investment is de-recognized when the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership and
rights to receive cash flows from the investment has expired or has been transferred.

3.4 Stores and Spares 

Stores and  spares are valued at cost, using weighted average method. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising
invoice value and other charges incurred thereon up to the reporting date. Adequate impairment allowance is made
for obsolescence and slow moving items as and when required based on parameters set out by management and
as stated in note 2.4 (f).

3.5 Stock-in-Trade

These are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. 

Cost in relation to finished goods and semi finished goods represents cost of raw material and an appropriate portion
of manufacturing overheads. Cost in respect of semi finished goods is adjusted to an appropriate stage of completion
of process.

3.6 Trade Debts

Trade Debts are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless they contain significant
financing component in which case such are recognised at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost. An allowance
is made for lifetime expected credit losses using simplified approach as mentioned in note 3.14. Trade debts are
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, i.e., when these are considered irrecoverable.

3.7 Employees post employment benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company operates an approved provident fund scheme for all its employees eligible to the benefit and equal
monthly contributions thereto are made both by the Company and the employees in accordance with the terms of
the scheme @ 10% of the basic salary plus applicable cost of living allowances.

3.8 Compensated unavailed leaves

The Company accounts for its liability towards unavailed leaves accumulated by employees on accrual basis.
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3.9 Taxation

a) Current Income Tax

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after taking into account
applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or minimum tax or alternate corporate tax under
section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whichever is higher.  The charge for current tax also includes
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for taxation made in previous years arising from assessments
framed during the year for such years. The Company also falls under the final tax regime under section 154 and 169
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 to the extent of export sales.

b) Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognized using liability method, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the deductible temporary differences will
reverse in the future and sufficient taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be utilized.

Deferred  tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income expected to be subject
to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the guidelines mentioned in Accounting Technical Release - 27 of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), if considered material.

c) Sales tax and Federal Excise Duty

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net off amount of sales tax / federal excise duty (FED) except:

i) Where sales tax / FED  incurred on a purchase of asset or service is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item as applicable; and

ii) Receivables or payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

iii) The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

3.10 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are recognized at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid
for goods and services received plus directly attributable costs and these are subsequently measured at amortised
cost.

3.11 Borrowings and their costs

Borrowings are recorded at the amount of proceeds received which is usually their fair value and subsequently carried
at amortized cost.

Borrowing costs incurred on finances obtained for the construction / installation of qualifying assets are capitalized
up to date the respective assets are available for the intended use. All other mark-up, interest and other related
charges are taken to the statement of profit or loss.
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3.12 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is not probable, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of outflow is remote.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

3.13 Financial Instruments

3.13.1 Recognition

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the company become party to the contractual provision of the
instrument. 

3.13.2 Initial measurement

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given or
received. These are subsequently measured at fair value or amortised cost as the case may be.

3.13.3 Classification of financial assets

The Company determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of financial
instruments (other than equity instruments) is driven by the Company�s business model for managing the financial
assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics. A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:
   - at amortised cost.
   - at fair value through profit or loss (�FVTPL�),
   - at fair value through other comprehensive income (�FVTOCI�), or

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are classified as financial assets at amortised cost:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are classified as financial assets at FVTOCI:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

3.13.4 Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or 'at fair value through profit or loss' (FVTPL). A
financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition.

3.13.5 Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. In case of financial
assets the amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

33



Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in the statement of profit
or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and
losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. On derecognition of a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to  statement
profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected
on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to  statement profit or loss, but is transferred to statement of changes in equity.

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

These are subsequently measured at fair value. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL and any interest / markup or dividend income are
included in the  statement profit or loss.

Where management has opted to recognise a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated with the Company�s
own credit risk will be recognized in other comprehensive income/(loss).

3.13.6 Derecognition of Financial Instruments

The Company derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets
expire or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and rewards of ownership
to another entity.  The Company derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities
are discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial asset or liability is also included
to the  statement profit or loss .

3.13.7 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if the Company has a legal enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle
on net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the company or the counter parties.

3.13.8 Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks
arising from operational, financing and investment activities. Derivatives qualifying for hedge accounting are accounted
for accordingly whereas, derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as held for trading
instruments. All changes in the fair value are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

3.14 Impairment

a) Financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. The
Company applies the simplified approach to recognise lifetime expected credit losses for trade and other receivables,
if any.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.
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The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due
for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the Gross carrying amount of
the assets. The Gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an
assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation
of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures
for recovery of amounts due.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for receivable and other financial assets at specific asset level.
Impairment losses are recognized as expense in statement of profit or loss . An impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
if no impairment loss had been recognized.

b) Non-Financial assets

The carrying amount of non-financial assets is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of a specific asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that
largely are independent from other assets and groups.

Impairment losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

3.15 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when or as performance obligation are satisfied. Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable and is recognized on following basis:

- Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the control of the goods have transferred to the buyer, usually
on dispatch of the goods to customers.
   

- Return on bank deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis on the principal amount outstanding at the
rate applicable.

- Mark-up on grower loan is accounted for in line with the recovery of the respective loan due to exigencies
involved in such matters. Recognition of mark-up on loans considered doubtful is deferred. 

- Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment is established.

3.16 Foreign currency transactions and translation:

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded into reporting currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into reporting
currency using year-end spot foreign exchange rates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated using
exchange rates that existed when the values were determined. Exchange differences on foreign currency translations
are included in the statement of profit or loss.
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3.17 Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprises of short term investments, cash
and cheques in hand, balances with banks on current, savings and deposit accounts.

3.18 Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relates to transactions with any of the company's
other components. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting structure
based on the operating (business) segments of the company.  An operating segment�s operating results are regularly
reviewed by the management and the chief executive officer for the purpose of making decisions regarding resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment assets, consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, intangibles,
stores and spares, stock in trade and other debts. Segment liabilities comprise of operating liabilities and exclude
items that are common to all operating segments.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Company's accounting policies described
in this note. Inter-segment transactions are recorded at fair value. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

The Company has following reportable segments on the basis of product characteristics and the criteria defined by
the "IFRS 8 Segment Reporting".

Sugar Division -  Manufacturing and sale of Refined Sugar

Ethanol Division - Manufacturing and sale of Ethyl Ethanol.

3.19 Dividends and other appropriations

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which these are
approved.

Note

2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)

4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 4.1  5,140,258  5,372,447
Capital work in progress (CWIP) 4.2  120,648  14,505

 5,260,906  5,386,952
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Manufacturing 28  82,593  247,915  330,508 81,163  264,329  345,492

Administration 31  15,484  9,654  25,138 16,326  10,467  26,793

 98,077  257,569  355,646 97,489  274,796  372,285

4.1.1 Allocation of Depreciation

Depreciation has been allocated as follows:

------------ (Rupees in thousand) ------------

SUGAR TOTALETHANOL

2021

------------ (Rupees in thousand) ------------

SUGAR TOTALETHANOL

2020

4.2 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Capital

expenditure

incurred

Transferred to

operating fixed

assets

Balance as at

close of the

year

( Rupees in thousand)

Balance as at

beginning of

the year

During the year

2021

Civil Works  -    10,965  -    10,965

Plant & Machinery                  14,505  203,702  (108,524)  109,683

 14,505  214,667  (108,524)  120,648
2020

Civil Works  253  -    (253)  -

Plant & Machinery  155,525  249,537  (390,557)  14,505

 155,778  249,537  (390,810)  14,505

4.1.2 DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Original Accumulated Sale Gain on Mode of

Cost Depreciation proceeds Disposal Disposal

Net Carrying

Value
Sold toDescription

-------------------------------------(Rupees in thousand)--------------------------------

Toyota Corolla Reliance

Insurance Co Ltd 1,863 1,100 763 2,000 1,237  Negotiations

Suzuki Cultus  Hammad Iqbal  1,145 486 659 1,400 741  Negotiations

Toyota Corolla  Ans Israr Ahmed 1,560 1,017 543 1,820 1,277  Negotiations

Seven vehicles each

having carrying value

less than Rs. 500,000 Various 8,033 7,004 1,029 6,765 5,736  Negotiations

2021  12,601  9,607  2,994  11,985  8,991 

2020  4,026  3,221  805  2,239  1,434

39



5 INTANGIBLE ASSET

Software - SAP Application

Cost  5,917  5,917
Accumulated Amortization  (5,917)  (5,917)

 -    -

The cost of software has been fully amortized over the period of three years in accordance with the accounting policy
of the Company. However, the software is still in use of the Company.

6 LONG TERM INVESTMENT
Under Equity Method

Investment in associate - Al-Noor Modaraba Management (Pvt.) Ltd.
Opening balance  1,006  1,351

Share of (loss) for the year 6.1.2  (168)  (285)

Share of associate's unrealized (loss)/ gain on
remeasurement of associate's investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income. 6.2  120  (60)

 (48)  (345)

 958  1,006

2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)Note

6.1 The Company holds 500,000 (14.29%) fully paid ordinary shares of Al-Noor Modaraba Management (Pvt.) Ltd (ANMM)
originally acquired at cost of Rs. 5.0 million. ANMM is a group company of Al-Noor Group and it is an associate by
virtue of common directorship. The principal activity of ANMM is to float and manage MODARABA and its principal
place of business is 96-A, S.M.C.H.S. Karachi. Chief Executive of ANMM is Mr. Zainuddin Aziz.

This strategic investment is measured using equity method. In view of regulatory framework applicable in Pakistan
the financial year end of ANMM is June 30 and since there are no significant changes in the associate's financial
affairs up to September 30, therefore, the financial results of ANMM as of June 30, 2021 have been used for the
purpose of application of equity method. The summarized financial information of ANMM based on its audited financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 is as under:

6.1.1 Assets and Liabilities of ANMM

Assets
Tangible and intangible fixed assets  348  452
Long term investments  13,440  12,600
Other non current assets  -    13
Current assets  676  1,382

 14,464  14,447
Liabilities

Non - current liabilities  (1,126)  (1,100)
Current liabilities  (1,386)  (1,316)

 (2,512)  (2,416)
Net Assets  11,952  12,031
Less: Loan from directors included in equity  5,264  5,000

 6,688  7,031

Share of Shahmurad Sugar Mills Limited - Breakup value of investment  958  1,006
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2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)Note

6.1.2 Profit and loss of ANMM

Income  99  31
Expenses  (1,251)  (2,108)

 (1,152)  (2,077)
Unrealised loss on remeasurement & impairment loss
on investment at fair value through profit or loss.  -    (19)
Other income  4  106
Loss for the year before taxation  (1,148)  (1,990)
Taxation  (26)  (1)
Loss for the year after taxation  (1,174)  (1,991)

Share of Shahmurad Sugar Mills Limited  (168)  (285)

6.2 Share of Associate's unrealized loss on re-measurement of 
associate's investment at fair value through OCI

Opening balance  2,501  2,441

Unrealized loss / (gain) on re-measurement of investment at fair value  (120)  60
through other comprehansive income

Closing balance  2,381  2,501

7 LONG TERM LOANS

 -  Unsecured & Interest free
Considered Good
- Due from executives 7.2 & 7.3  1,307  300
- Due from other employees  3,704  2,744

 5,011  3,044
Less: Current Portion of:
- Due from executives  (957)  (300)
- Due from other employees  (2,659)  (1,520)

 (3,616)  (1,820)

 1,395  1,224

41

7.1 Loans and advances have been given in accordance with the terms of employment and are recoverable, in monthly
instalments, within three years following the reporting date. These interest free loans are carried at cost since the
effect of amortization is immaterial.

7.2 Movement of loans to executives

Balance at the beginning of the year  300  2,021
Disbursed during the year  2,150  30
Recovered during the year  (1,143)  (1,751)
Balance at the end of the year  1,307  300

7.3 The maximum aggregate amount due from executives at any month end during the year was Rs. 1.70 million (2020:
1.929 million).



2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)Note

8 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Unsecured & Interest free
Utilities  1,039  1,039
Others  1,390  1,390

 2,429  2,429

9 STORES AND SPARES

Stores  204,373  147,504
Spare parts  166,637  169,817
Stores in transit  540  108

 371,550  317,429

Less: Impariment allowance for obsolescence and slow moving items 9.1 (74,200)  (70,100)

 297,350  247,329

9.1 Impariment allowance for obsolescence and slow moving items

Opening Balance  70,100  59,244
Provision for the year  4,100  10,856
Closing balance  74,200  70,100

10 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw Material - Molasses 10.1  1,954,857  473,232
Sugar in process  15,220  13,228
Trading stock of fertilizers  65  214
Finished goods

Sugar 10.1  620,828  628,322
Ethanol  983,721  488,452

 1,604,549  1,116,774

 3,574,691  1,603,448

10.1 Stock of finished goods pledged against short term finances under mark-up arrangement as referred in note No. 24
 amounted to Rs. 473.136 million (2020: Rs. 141.476 million).
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11 TRADE DEBTS

Export sales  292,372  191,750
Local sales  123,128  15,428

 415,500  207,178
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2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)Note

12 LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Unsecured - Considered Good
Current portion of long term loans 7  3,616  1,820
Advances against purchases and services 12.1  143,764  1,459,917
Advances against expenses  8,216  6,065

 155,596  1,467,802

Considered doubtful
Loans to growers 12.2  25,018  25,018
Less impairment allowance  (25,018)  (25,018)

 -    -

 155,596  1,467,802

12.1 This includes Rs. Nil (2020: Rs. 150.0 million) advance to Al- Noor Sugar Mills Limited, an assocaite company, for
purchase of molasses.

12.2 These loans were given to farmers/growers for sugar cane cultivation in the year and development carrying interest
@ 10% which is accounted for in line with the recovery of the respective loan. These loans were adjustable against
purchase of sugarcane from respective growers. However, an impairment allowance has been made in respect of
loans against which future adjustment through purchase of sugarcane is considered doubtful and hence as a matter
of prudence no interest is accrued thereon as well.

13 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Short term deposits  1,112  5
Short term prepayments  330  452

 1,442  457

14 OTHER RECEIVABLES

- Unsecured Considered Good
Associated undertaking - Reliance Insurance Company Limited 14.1  156  595
State Bank of Pakistan - Export subsidy  116,623  175,318
Government of Sindh - Export subsidy  767  767
Others  9  9

 117,555  176,689

- Considered Doubtful
Export subsidies 14.2  164,395  105,700
Less: Impairment allowance against export freight subsidy  (164,395)  (105,700)

 -    -

 117,555  176,689

14.1 This represented receivable against an insurance claim for damage to sugar stock and which has been recovered
during the year.

14.2 These represent freight subsidy of Rs. 47.005 million on sugar exports receivable from Trade Development Authority
of Pakistan and Rs. 117.390 million receivable from State Bank of Pakistan and Sindh Government. The Company
is following up for the recovery however, due to uncertainties regarding its recoverability, impairment allowance has
been made as a matter of prudence.



Note

2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)

15 SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

Special Sharikah Certificates 15.1  373  2,100,000
Accrued Profit  3  3,781

 376  2,103,781

15.1 These special sharikah certificates carry profit at 2021: 5.75% (2020: 5.75%). The investment has maturity of upto
one month.
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16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand  1,149  850
Cash at banks
In current accounts

Local currency  52,067  34,936
Foreign currency  44  49

In saving accounts 16.1  501  554
 52,612  35,539

 53,761  36,389

16.1 This carry profit at the rate ranging between 4.10% to 4.7% (2020: 9.5% to 11.5%) p.a.

16.2 Bank balances include Rs. 12.864 million (2020: Rs. 10.104 million) with shariah compliant financial institutions.

17 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

 11,730,368  11,730,368 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each allotted  117,304  117,304
for consideration paid  in cash

 9,388,295  9,388,295 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each allotted   93,883  93,883
as fully paid bonus shares 

 21,118,663  21,118,663  211,187  211,187

2021 2020

No. of Shares

17.1 Associated companies hold 5,013,100 (23.73%) shares of the Company (2020: 5,013,100 i.e. 23.73%).

17.2 All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company�s residual assets. Holders of these shares are entitled
to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company.

18 GENERAL RESERVE

This represents amount appropriated out of profit in past years and retained in order to meet future exigencies.



2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)

19 REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Opening balance - Gross  1,568,145  1,664,433

Transfer to equity on account of incremental depreciation
Incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax  (80,499)  (86,547)
Deferred tax on incremental depreciation  (9,221)  (9,741)

 (89,720)  (96,288)

Closing balance - Gross  1,478,425  1,568,145

Related deferred tax liability  (169,274)  (178,495)

Revaluation surplus net of deferred tax  1,309,151  1,389,650

Freehold Land 20% -  213,331  170,665
Building including factory/ non-factor
   and other building 20% -  370,939  296,749

Plant & Machinery - 25% / 30%  4,430,497  3,340,206

Revalued
Amount

based on last
revaluation as

of 30-09-18

Orderly
Liquidation
Value (OLV)

Disposition
Value (DV)

Discount Factor % Forced
Sale Value
based on

revaluation as
of 30-09-18

19.2 The revalution surplus on property, plant and equipment is not available for distribution to shareholders of the Company
 in accordance with the section 240 of the Companies Act 2017.

20 LONG TERM FINANCING

Banks  771,964  1,021,740 
Financial institutions  123,136  141,872 

20.1  895,100  1,163,612
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19.1 The Company carries its land, building and plant and machinery on revaluation model in accordance with IAS -16
"Property, Plant and Equipment". Revaluation is carried out  by independent valuer and last revaluation was carried
out during the year ended September 30, 2018 through report dated September 28, 2018. Forced sale value has
been determined by the valuer using discount factor, i.e., Disposition Value (DV) Factor for Land and Building and
Orderly Liquidation Value (OLV) factor for plant and machinery as follows;
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22.1 During the year, performance obligation underlying the opening contract liability of Rs. 179.498 million were satisfied
in full. Accordingly, the said liability was recorded as revenue during the year. In addition, information regarding the
timing of satisfaction of performance obligations underlying the closing contract liability of Rs. 56.794 mlliion is not
presented since the expected duration of all the contracts entered into with the customers is less than one year.

22.2 These are utilized for the purpose of the business as per agreements, in compliance with requirements of section
217 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Note

2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)

21 DEFERRED TAXATION

Opening balance  17,212  (25,726)
Charged to statement of profit or loss  53,067  42,938

Closing balance  70,279  17,212

Deferred tax arises due to:
Taxable temporary differences in respect of

Accelerated tax depreciation  206,180  202,549
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 19  169,274  178,495

 375,454  381,044
Deductible temporary differences in respect of

Impairment allowances & other provisions  (30,261)  (29,072)
Unabsorbed business loss/ tax depreciation  (274,914)  (334,760)

 (305,175)  (363,832)
 70,279  17,212

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors  26.10 & 26.11  564,541  922,779
Accrued expenses  37,392  29,790
Advance from customers 22.1  56,794  179,498
Retention money payables 22.2  10,281  10,281
Sales tax payable - net  98,237  105,106
Gratuity payable  1,930  1,930
Worker's profit participation fund 22.3  16,037  56,261
Worker's Welfare Fund  11,772  22,732
Payable to staff provident fund  1,891  333

 798,875  1,328,710
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22.3 Worker's profit participation fund

Opening balance  56,261  79,561
Interest on funds utilized 34  1,494  3,813
Allocation for the year 32  16,037  52,448

 73,792  135,822

Payments made during the year  (57,755)  (79,561)

Closing balance  16,037  56,261

22.3 This carries interest rate prescribed under Companies Profit (Workers Participation) Act, 1968 and effective rate of
interest applied during the year was 2021: 10% (2020: 14.7%).



25 LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES

Loans from related parties 25.1  48,135  48,135

25.1 These represent loans from related parties which are repayable on demand and currently these do not carry markup.

Note

2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)
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Note

2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)

23 ACCRUED FINANCE COST

On long term financing  7,621  14,363
On short term borrowings  22,649  17,453

 30,270  31,816

23.1 Accrued finance cost includes Rs. 9.932 million (2020: Rs. 22.100 million) in respect of borrowings under shariah
compliant arrangements.

24 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
From banking companies - Secured

Cash / Running finance 24.1  300,979  171,288
Export refinance 24.2  1,826,000  2,170,000
Musawama / IERF / Murabaha 24.3  1,050,000  1,300,000

 3,176,979  3,641,288

24.1 The facilities are available up to Rs. 2,800 million (2020: Rs. 2,220 million) and are secured against pledge of sugar
/ molasses/ ethanol and first pari passu charge on property, plant and equipment. The effective rate of mark-up ranges
from 1M / 3M Kibor + 0.10% to 0.60% (2020: 1M / 3M Kibor + 0.10% to 0.60%). Unutilized facilities as on year end
amounted to Rs. 2,499 million (2020: Rs. 2,049 million).

24.2 The facilities are available under SBP export finance scheme up to limit of Rs. 2,290 million (2020: Rs. 2,170 Million)
and are secured by first pari passu equitable mortgage charge and hypothecation over current and future Property,
plant and equipment of the company and pledge of sugar / molasses / ethanol (refer note 10.1). The effective rate
of mark-up is 0.25% to 1.00% over SBP ERF rate which was 2.25% to 3.00% (2020: 2.25% to 3.0%). Unutilized
facilities as on year end amounted to Rs. 464 million (2020: Rs. Nil).

24.3 Musawama / IERF / Murabaha has been obtained from shariah compliant banks. The aggregate limit of Musawama
/ IERF / Murabaha arrangements  is up to Rs. 3,500 million (2020: Rs 2,250 million). These are secured by Pledge
of sugar, molasses and ethanol ranking charge over stocks and book debts and pari passu hypothecation charge
on Property Plant & Equipment & Pledge of Sugar (refer note 10.1). The effective rates of profit are ranging between
Respective 3M/6M Kibor + 0.35% to 0.50% and SBP rate + 1.00% (2020: Respective / 3M Kibor + 0.25 % to 0.30%
and SBP rate + 0.50% to 1.00%). The unavailed facility at the year end amounted to Rs. 2,450 million (2020: Rs.
950 million).

24.4 Short-term borrowings include Rs. 1,050 million (2020: Rs. 1,300 million) under shariah compliant arrangements.



26 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

a) CONTINGENCIES

26.1 The Company filed petition before Honourable High Court of Sindh challenging the levy of further tax against taxable

supplies made to unregistered  person under section 3(1A) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990. The entire liability till November

30, 2000 was paid by the Company, in the month of December 2000. As per judgment awarded against the department

by the Honourable High Court of Sindh, the Company has claimed refund of such further tax amounting to Rs. 45.190

million out of which an amount of Rs.7.144 million was refunded by the department.

The Department of Sales Tax has thereafter filed an Appeal before the Honourable Supreme Court against the Order

of the Honourable High Court of Sindh. The Honourable Supreme Court has allowed the Appeal with direction to the

department to act in accordance with law; however Ratio Decidendi ordered by the High Court of Sindh has not been

reversed, over ruled or amended. Sales Tax department has however raised demands of further tax involving amount

of Rs. 54 million, which had been contested by the company in the light of Sindh High Court Judgment on which the

Sales Tax Tribunal had issued orders in favour of the company. Against the order of the tribunal the sales tax

department filed appeal before the Honourable High Court which is pending. Considering the decision of the Court

and facts of the case the legal counsel of the company is of the view that the final outcome of the matter will be in

favour of the Company.

26.2 The Company has filed a petition before the Honourable High Court of Sindh on 11 June 2011 against the imposition

of special excise duty and recovery by the Inland Revenue Department (the Department) of 70% of the total amount

of Rs 7.073 million against excise duty involved. The case was decided in favour of the company declaring Special

Excise Duty as void ab-initio and of no legal effect. Thereafter the Department has filed an appeal before Honourable

Supreme Court of Pakistan against the decision of Honourable High Court which is pending. The Company as a

matter of abundant prudence has provided for the amount of said duty in the financial statements. During the year

2013, the Company received show-cause notice no C.No.01(01)RP/Zone-II/2013/ dated 10 December 2013 from

the Department against refund claim of Special Excise Duty amounting to Rs. 48.457 million filed by the Company

in compliance with the order of Honourable High Court of Sindh. The Company filed appeal in the Honourable High

court of Sindh on 30 December 2013 against that show cause notice issued by the Department and the Honourable

High Court issued stay order against the proceedings on show cause notice. No provision is made in the financial

statement as the outcome of case is expected to be in favour of the company as per legal counsel.

26.3 The Company�s appeal in the Honourable Supreme Court dated 19 February 2004 against the Order of the Sindh

High Court for levy of Quality Premium was accepted by the Honourable Supreme Court by assailing the Order of

Sindh High Court. Furthermore Federal Government steering committee through its decision on 16-07-2007 held

that the quality premium shall remain suspended till decision of Honourable Supreme Court or consensus on uniform

formula to be developed by MINFAL.

During the year 2017-2018, the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan through its order dated 5 March 2018 has

decided the matter against the Sugar Manufacturing Companies and the Legal Counsel of the Company is of the

view that the Honourable Supreme Court has now simply prescribed the criteria for future, which if followed properly,

would make quality premium applicable in the future, and in relation to the past (other than crushing season 1998 �

1999) it appears that no liability arose as no legally binding notification under section 16(v) can be said to be in the

field in the light of the decision of the Honourable Supreme Court. Accordingly, no liability arises for the past except

for the year 1998 � 99 for which quality premium amounted to Rs. 93.7 million against which no provision is made

as the Company has already paid price higher than the minimum notified price for the said year. 

26.4 There are certain litigations pending in the Honourable Sindh High Court, Hyderabad pertaining to ex-employees.

The sixth Sindh labour court awarded decision in favour of the company and the ex-employees filed an appeal in

Labour Appellate Tribunal at Hyderabad the outcome of which has also been decided in favour of the Company. The

ex-employees have now filed suit before the Honourable Sindh High Court, Hyderabad.  The financial liability may

arise only if these cases are finally decided against the Company. The amount of liability is not ascertainable and

hence, no provision has been made in this regard as in the management view the same is not likely to crystallize.
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26.5 Cases regarding possession of land of the Company are pending in the Honourable High Court of Sindh which were
filed on 01 January 2010 and 22 July 2010 and the financial impact of the same is not presently determinable with
any accuracy. The Company is confident that the same is not likely to be decided against the Company.

26.6 The Company has filed a petition in the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan, dated 14 January 2010 against a
show cause notice issued by Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP), challenging the jurisdiction of the Competition
Commission. The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan has disposed the petition on the ground that this matter
is already under proceedings with Honourable High Courts and refrained CCP from passing any final / penal order
till a final decision is achieved at Honourable High Courts. There are no financial implications related to this at the
moment.

26.7 Pakistan Standards and Quality Control Authority (the Authority) has demanded a marking fee payment @ 0.1% of
ex-factory price for the year 2008-09 amounting to Rs. 1.45 million. The Company is of the view that demand
notifications so raised are without any lawful authority under the PSQCA Act-VI of 1996 and are violation of the
constitution. The Company has filed a petition before the Honourable High Court of Sindh dated 01 September 2010
challenging the levy of marking fee under PSQCA Act-VI of 1996 and the Honourable court accepted the petition
and termed that the impugned notification has been issued without lawful authority and suspended the operation of
the impugned notifications. In the meantime the legal counsel of the company filed caveat in respect of an appeal
to be filed by the PSQCA against the Judgment in Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan. The Pakistan Standards
and Quality Control Authority have filed an appeal before the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan against the
decision of Honourable High Court of Sindh. No provision has been made in this respect.

26.8 A show cause notice was issued by the Department of Inland Revenue LTU Karachi, regarding the reduced rate of
Federal Excise Duty availed by the Company amounting to Rs. 99.801 million under SRO 77 (1) / 2013 dated February
7, 2013. The Company has filed suit in the Honourable High Court of Sindh Karachi dated 30 December 2013 against
the show cause notice and the matter is pending before the Honourable High Court of Sindh. Pending the outcome
of the case no provision has been made as the outcome of the case is expected to be in favour of the company as
per legal counsel.

26.9 Excise, taxation and Narcotics department, Government of Sindh had notified fee on storage of rectified spirit in a
private bonded warehouse at Rs. 0.5 per litre. The Company has filed appeal before the Honourable High Court of
Sindh against the notification dated 08 July 2014. The Honourable High Court has issued stay order against the
recovery of the storage charges on rectified spirit. Amount of the storage fee up-to September 30, 2015 works out
to Rs. 70.044 million and no provision is made in the financial statements as the outcome of case is expected to be
in the favour of Company as per legal counsel.

26.10 Against the sugarcane purchase price of Rs. 172 per 40 Kgs as fixed for the season 2013-2014, the company had
filed a Constitutional Petition, dated 21 January 2014, before the Honourable High Court of Sindh for linkage with
prevailing market sugar price which was dismissed and the matter was taken up with the Honourable Supreme Court
of Pakistan on 05 January 2015. In the due course of time, the Government of Sindh fixed the price of sugarcane
at Rs. 182 per 40 kgs for the season2014-15 in pursuance of which the Sindh Chamber of Agriculture filed a petition
in the Honourable High Court of Sindh. The HonourableHigh Court disposed of the case upon settlement with the
consent of all the stake holders whereby it was settled that Sugar Mills shall purchase the sugarcane from growers
at Rs. 160 per 40 kgs for crushing season 2014-15 whereas Rs. 12 per 40 kgs will be paid by the Government of
Sindh. The Honourable High Court has subjected this interim arrangement to the decision of Civil appeal No 48 of
2015, dated 20 January 2015, which is pending before the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan and also have
ordered that the fate of remaining Rs. 10 i.e., difference of Rs. 182 and 172 will also be dependent on upon the
decision of Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan. The Company based on the discussion with legal council is of
the view that this difference will not be payable, hence provision of Rs 149 million already made as a matter of
prudence has been reversed.

26.11 During the year 2017-2018, the Government of Sindh issued a notification no. 8(142)/ S.O(EXT)2017, according to
which, the minimum price of sugarcane has been fixed at the rate of Rs. 182 per 40 kg for the crushing season 2017-
2018. The Company along with other Sugar mills has filed a petition in the High Court of Sindh dated 19 December
2017 against the said notification. Thereafter, the Honourable Court after deliberations with all stakeholders announced
the judgement fixing the purchase price at the Rs. 160 to be paid to growers and the balance of Rs. 22 per 40 kg to
be decided by the Supreme Court of Pakistan which is pending. However, the Company, as a matter of prudence
accounted for the said difference of Rs. 22 per 40 kgs these financial statements aggregating to Rs.409.518 million.
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2021 2020
(Rupees in thousand)

b) COMMITMENTS

The Company's commitment as on September 30, are as follows:

Commitments for capital expenditure 61,997  34,114
Commitments for stores and spares 4,729  14,056 

66,726  48,170 

Bank Guarantees 
In favour of Excise and Taxation Department  500 500

26.12 During the year 2016-17, Deputy Commissioner has raised a demand of Rs. 4.01 million in respect of claim of
inadmissible input through order dated 21 August 2017 in light of proceedings of showcause notice no C.No.
DCIR/SSML/Inadmissible/E&C-3&4/Zone-II/LTU/2017 dated 02 May 2017. The Company filed an appeal with
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals), dated 15 September 2017 and the case was decided in favour of the
Company. Being aggrieved by the said order, the Department has filed appeal in the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
which is yet to be decided. The management and advisor of the Company are of the view that the Company has
reasonable grounds and favourable outcome is expected so no provision is made.

26.13 The Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) in August 2021 passed an orders dated 13 August 2021 and imposed
penalty on PSMA and member sugar mills alleging them to be guilty of collusive activities and cartelization. The
penalty imposed on the Company is Rs. 575 million. The PSMA and our Company along with other sugar mills filed
the Suit against the order of the Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) at Sindh High Court (SHC). The Honorable
Court passed an interim order on October 7, 2021 stating that the operation of impugned orders dated 06.08.2021
and 13.08.2021 shall remain suspended till the hearing is underway. The Company expect favourable outcome in
the matter.

26.14 The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) issued notices for conducting tax audits for multiple years commencing from
2015 to 2019 under section 177 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and despite providing all records, submission
of evidences and details, audit proceedings for the tax year 2015 and 2016 were concluded by passing detrimental
orders under section 122(1)/(5) of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 whereby frivolous tax demand of Rs. 7,016 billion
for these two tax years have been created and no conclusion for other tax years has yet been made. The demand
is based on arbitrary and illogical observations against which the company has preferred appeals to the Commissioner
Inland Revenue [Appeals-I], Karachi which is pending for hearing. In the meanwhile, the Company also got stay
orders from the Honorable Sindh High Court refraining the department to take coercive measures for recovery of
the demand during the pendency of the Appeal. Since the demanded tax is not based on fact and records and in
the view of tax advisor, favourable outcome is expected in the appeal, hence no provision has been made in the
financial statements against said demands.
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2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Note

TOTALETHANOLSUGAR

--------------------------  (Rupees in thousand) --------------------------
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27 SALES

Local  4,577,081  4,339,699  -    4,306  4,577,081 4,344,005

Export  -    358,175  6,024,695  7,086,803  6,024,695 7,444,978

 4,577,081  4,697,874  6,024,695  7,091,109  10,601,776 11,788,983

Less:

Sales Tax  (665,046)  (644,213)  -    (626)  (665,046)  (644,839)

Commission  (2,237)  (537)  -    -    (2,237) (537)

 (667,283)  (644,750)  -    (626)  (667,283)  (645,376)

Net sales  3,909,798  4,053,124  6,024,695  7,090,483  9,934,493  11,143,607

28 COST OF SALES

Manufacturing cost:

Raw material consumed  3,418,526  3,192,597  5,148,429  4,539,506  8,566,955  7,732,103

Salaries, wages and benefits 28.1  118,779  122,838  50,073  47,233  168,852  170,071

Stores and spares consumed  91,284  103,516  34,174  27,763  125,458  131,279

Packing materials  26,019  25,674  222,502  598,940  248,521  624,614

Fuel and oil  11,971  10,007  123,575  86,732  135,546  96,739

Power and water  6,671  8,365  1,157  715  7,828  9,080

Chemicals and process materials  28,757  28,704  55,527  44,641  84,284  73,345

Repair and maintenance  33,856  32,060  27,228  30,859  61,084  62,919

Insurance  7,148  7,351  11,182  8,962  18,330  16,313

Other manufacturing expenses  14,039  15,607  2,761  2,052  16,800  17,659

Depreciation 4.1.1  82,593  81,163  247,915  264,329  330,508  345,492

 3,839,643  3,627,882  5,924,523  5,651,732  9,764,166  9,279,614

Opening stock of work in process  13,228  5,831  -    -    13,228  5,831

Closing stock of work in process  (15,220)  (13,228)  -    -    (15,220)  (13,228)

 (1,992)  (7,397)  -    -    (1,992)  (7,397)

 3,837,651  3,620,485  5,924,523  5,651,732  9,762,174  9,272,217

Molasses transfer to Ethanol Division  (449,085)  (367,335)  -    -    (449,085)  (367,335)

Bagasse transfer to Ethanol Division  (46,023)  (60,300)  -    -    (46,023)  (60,300)

Fusil oil sale  -    -    (11,133)  (4,167)  (11,133)  (4,167)

 (495,108)  (427,635)  (11,133)  (4,167)  (506,241)  (431,802)

 3,342,543  3,192,850  5,913,390  5,647,565  9,255,933  8,840,415

Opening stock of finished goods  628,322  1,202,189  488,452  184,841  1,116,774  1,387,030

Closing stock of finished goods  (620,828)  (628,322)  (983,721)  (488,452)  (1,604,549)  (1,116,774)

 7,494  573,867  (495,269)  (303,611)  (487,775)  270,256

Export freight and related charges  -    4,155  404,225  437,141  404,225  441,296

 3,350,037  3,770,872  5,822,346  5,781,095  9,172,383  9,551,967

28.1 Includes Rs. 4.378 million (2020 : Rs. 4.615 million) in respect of contribution towards provident fund.

29 PROFIT FROM TRADING ACTIVITIES

Sales  6,504  15,503  -    -    6,504  15,503

Sales tax  (128)  (304)  -    -    (128)  (304)

 6,376  15,199  -    -    6,376  15,199

Less: Cost of sales

Opening stock  214  3,758  -    214  3,758

Purchases  5,785  10,523  -    5,785  10,523

Closing stock  (65)  (214)  -    (65)  (214)

 5,934  14,067  -    -    5,934  14,067

 442  1,132  -    -    442  1,132 



2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)Note

30 DISTRIBUTION COST

Sugar handling and other charges  14,393  14,777  -    -    14,393 14,777

Storage charges  -    -    14,159  -    14,159  -

Carriage out ward  -    -    14,816  -    14,816  -

 14,393  14,777  28,975  -    43,368 14,777

31 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and benefits 31.1  58,856  63,903  54,834  45,284  113,690 109,187

Staff welfare  7,204  11,776  12,977  12,627  20,181 24,403

Repair and maintenance  8,145  7,758  9,740  9,103  17,885 16,861

Legal and professional  6,129  4,877  1,181  530  7,310 5,407

Auditors' remuneration 31.2  1,024  1,024  541  541  1,565 1,565

Vehicle running  11,982  10,474  7,738  6,855  19,720 17,329

Insurance  686  758  -    -    686 758

Communication  952  1,077  2,868  3,052  3,820 4,129

Entertainment  2,978  2,556  5,566  4,651  8,544 7,207

Printing and stationery  434  944  1,028  790  1,462 1,734

Fees and subscription  4,058  3,553  3,391  2,918  7,449 6,471

Advertisement  402  175  -    -    402 175

Depreciation 4.1.1  15,484  16,326  9,654  10,467  25,138 26,793

Others  15,571  11,842  12,152  12,005  27,723 23,847

 133,905  137,043  121,670  108,823  255,575 245,866

31.1 Includes Rs. 5.211 million (2020 : Rs. 1.968 million) in respect of contribution towards provident fund.

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Note

TOTALETHANOLSUGAR

--------------------------  (Rupees in thousand) --------------------------

31.2 Auditors' remuneration

Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co
  Statutory audit  766  766  489  489  1,255  1,255
  Half yearly review  75  75  46  46  121  121
  Corporate Governance  10  10  6  6  16  16
Other certifications  56  56  -    -    56  56
Sindh sales tax on services  117  117  -    -    117  117

 1,024  1,024  541  541  1,565  1,565

32 OTHER EXPENSES

Charity and donation 32.1  1,749  1,612
Impairment allowance for obsolescence and
   slow moving store and spares  4,100  10,856
Impairment allowance for export subsidy  58,695  58,695
Directors meeting fee  320  280
Worker's profit participation fund  16,037  52,448
Worker's welfare fund  6,099  5,672
Balances written-off  -    281

 87,000  129,844

32.1 None of the directors or their spouses had any interest in the above donees.
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2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)Note

33 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial Assets and others
Net exchange gain 4.1.2  36,080  8,998
Income on saving bank accounts  46,601  46,227

 82,681  55,225
Income from non financial Assets

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  8,991  1,434
Liabilities written back  177,610  -
Export performance rebate  -    10,666
Insurance claim  716  5,025
Scrap sales 33.1  18,619  1,082
Others  -    180

 205,936  18,387

 288,617  73,612

33.1 This is net of sales tax of Rs 3.165 million (2020: Rs 0.184 million).

34 FINANCE COST

Mark-up/Interest/Profit on:
   Long term financing  81,824  140,824
   Short-term borrowiings

Cash/running finance  100,994  77,165
Export refinance/IERF  84,631  78,306

 185,625  155,471
   Istisna / Murabaha  91,521  40,325
   Worker's profit participation fund 22.3  1,494  3,813
Bank and other charges  6,155  3,591

 366,619  344,024

34.1 Finance cost includes Rs. 179.392 million (2020: Rs. 179.304 million) in respect of shariah compliant arrangements.

35 PROVISION FOR TAXATION

Current  109,706  130,305
Prior year adjustment  -    (1,970)
Deferred  53,067  42,938

 162,773  171,273
35.1 Reconciliation of tax expense:

Accounting profit before tax  298,439  931,588
Applicable tax rate 29% 29%
Tax expense based on accounting profit  86,547  270,161
Add/(less) 

Effects of FTR  60,719  (192,646)
Effects of minimum tax  48,987  55,668
Prior year adjustment  -    (1,970)
Effects of temporary differences and others  (33,479)  40,060

 76,227  (98,888)

 162,773  171,273
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35.2 The management believes that the tax provision made in the financial statements is sufficient. A comparision of last
three years of income tax provision with tax assessed is presented below:

37 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

37.1 The related parties comprise of associate companies, directors, executives being the key management personnel
and post employment contribution plan. The company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with
various related parties. Balances due from and to related parties are shown under respective notes, and remuneration
of executives and directors and key management personnel, being executives, have been disclosed in note 39.
Transactions with related parties are as follow:

37.3 Outstanding balances with related parties have been separately disclosed at their respective notes to these financial
statements.

As per Financial As per Return/ 
Year Statements Assessment
                                                     Rupees in thousand

2020  130,305  138,833
2019  109,338  108,016
2018  -  -

Accounting

36 EARNING PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit after taxation (Rupees in thousand)  135,666  760,315

Weighted average number of ordinary shares  21,118,663  21,118,663

Earning per share - Rupees 6.42  36.00

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earning per share.

2021 2020

37.2 During the year the Company entered transactions / arrangement with following related parties on the basis of
relationship mentioned below:

Percentage of shareholdingName of related parties Relationship

Reliance Insurance Company Limited Common directorship                      -     -

Al Noor Modaraba Management (Pvt.) Ltd. Common directorship and Shareholding 14.29% 14.29%

Al-Noor Sugar Mills Limited Common directorship -     -
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Associates
Al Noor Sugar Mills Limited - Purchase of Goods  598,793  667,173

- Dividend paid  39,597  56,096

Al Noor Modaraba Management (Pvt.) Ltd. - Share of loss  (168)  (285)
- Share of other comprehensive loss
     and item taken to equity  120  (60)

Reliance Insurance Company Limited - Insurance premium  24,701  25,507
- Insurance claim  716  5,647

Others
Staff Provident Fund - Contribution of the Company  9,590  6,584

2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)Relationships Nature of Transactions Note



2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)
38 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION IN METRIC TONS

Sugar Division

Installed cane crushing capacity per day (M.Tons)  11,000  11,000
No of days Mill operated  90  96
Total crushing capacity on basis of no. of days mill operated (M.Tons)  990,000  1,056,000
Actual crushing (M.Tons)  441,293  444,430
Sugar Production (M.Tons)  47,220  48,786

The sugar production plant capacity is based on crushing sugar cane on daily basis and the sugar production is
dependent on certain factors which include recovery. Capacity is under utilized due to shortage of raw material.

Ethanol Division

Plant - I
Installed ethanol production capacity per day (M.Tons)  100  100
No of days Mill operated  210  191
Total ethanol production capacity on basis of no. of days mill operated (M.Tons)  21,000  19,100
Production in M.Tons  17,103  17,566

Plant - II
Installed ethanol production capacity per day (M.Tons)  100  100
No of days Mill operated  303  322
Total ethanol production capacity on basis of no. of days mill operated (M.Tons)  30,300  32,200
Production in M.Tons  25,540  30,042

The ethanol plant production capacity under-utilization is due to various technical factors and shortage of raw material.

39 CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES' REMUNERATION

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements in respect of remuneration including all benefits to Chief
Executive, Director and Executives of the Company during the year were as follows:

Chief
Executive Directors

Executives Total Chief
Executive

Executives Total

2021 2020

Managerial Remuneration  5,888  7,299  25,084  38,271  5,152  6,387  26,523  38,062

Provident fund  736  912  2,485  4,133  -    -    1,207  1,207

Perquisite (including house
   rent and bonus)  2,944  3,650  24,520  31,114  2,576  3,193  27,615  33,384

Reimbursable expenses 
   including travelling expenses  1,234  809  -    2,043  1,065  597  -    1,662

 10,802  12,670  52,089  75,561  8,793  10,177  55,345  74,315

Number of persons 1 1 10 12 1 1 11 13

Rupees in thousand

i. The Chief Executive, Executive Directors and all the Executives are also provided with free use of company's
maintained cars.

ii. Meeting fee paid to non-executive directors aggregates to Rs. 320,000 (2020: Rs.280,000) respectively.

iii. Executives are those employees whose annual basic salary is equal to or more than twelve hundred thousands.

Executive
Directors
Executive
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40 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The operating results, assets and liabilities and other significant information of each segment is as follows:

REVENUE

External sales 27  3,909,798  4,053,124  6,024,695  7,090,483  9,934,493  11,143,607

Inter-segment transfers  495,108  427,635  -    -    495,108  427,635

 4,404,906  4,480,759  6,024,695  7,090,483  10,429,601  11,571,242

RESULTS

Profit from operations  411,463  130,432  51,704  1,200,565  463,167  1,330,997

Profit from trading activity  442  1,132  -    -    442  1,132

Other Income  167,831  11,721  120,786  61,891  288,617  73,612

 579,736  143,285  172,490  1,262,456  752,226  1,405,741

Other expenses  (87,000)  (129,844)

Finance cost  (366,619)  (344,024)

Share of loss from associate  (168)  (285)

Profit before tax  298,439  931,588

Taxation  (162,773)  (171,273)

Net profit for the year  135,666  760,315

STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

Segment assets  2,979,334  2,886,010  6,687,999  8,134,341  9,667,333  11,020,351

Unallocated Assets  262,965  290,179

Long term investment  958  1,006

Total assets  9,931,256  11,311,536

Liabilities

Segment liabilities  1,469,955  1,746,292  3,772,089  4,707,071  5,242,044  6,453,363

Unallocated liabilities  27,809  79,132

Total liabilities  5,269,853  6,532,495

OTHER INFORMATION

Additions to property, plant

   and equipment  139,091  210,165  93,503  51,178  232,594  261,343

Depreciation  98,077  97,489  257,569  274,796  355,646  372,285

Revenue from major customers

During the year external sales to major customers amounted to Rs. 1,655 million (2020: 4,109 million).

------------------------------------------- Rupees in thousand ----------------------------------------------

Sugar Division

2021 2020

Total

2021 2020

Ethanol Division

2021 2020
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2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)Note

Geographical Information

All non-current assets of the Company are located in Pakistan. Company's local external net sales represent sales

to various customers in Pakistan as well as outside Pakistan as follows:

Pakistan  3,909,798  3,698,629

China  1,103,323  -

Ghana  969,027  1,607,476

Indonesia  677,412  306,025

Taiwan  488,424  69,111

Thailand  358,847  346,361

Philippines  332,867  285,796

Tanzania  297,753  280,661

Spain  280,478  -

Netherlands  269,860  -

Lebanon  237,336  116,355

Singapore  152,982  119,257

Jordan  117,733  418,549

Italy  96,040  -

Cameroon  65,999  278,909

Turkey  65,030  128,922

Korea  56,264  38,271

Iraq  55,960  138,873

UAE  37,354  219,645

Ivory Coast  26,762  439,620

Angola  -    784,454

Afghanistan  -    358,175

Sierra Leone  -    301,400

Kuwait  -    267,354

South Korea  -    260,728

Liberia  -    93,865

Nigeria  -    33,799

Others  335,244  551,372

 9,934,493  11,143,607
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41 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities of the company as at September 30 are as follows:

Maturity up to

One Year

Maturity after

One Year
Sub Total

Maturity up to

One Year

Maturity after

One Year
Sub Total

Non-Mark-up / Non-Interest Based

Total

--------------------------------------------(Rupees in thousand)-----------------------------------------

2021

Mark-up / Interest Based

FINANCIAL ASSETS

At cost / amortised cost

 Long term loans  -    -    -    3,616  1,395  5,011  5,011

 Long and short term deposits  -    -    -    1,112  2,429  3,541  3,541

 Trade debts  -    -    -    415,500  -    415,500  415,500

 Other receivables  -    -    -    165  -    165  165

 Short term investment  373  -    373  3  -    3  376

 Cash and bank balances  501  -    501  53,260  -    53,260  53,761

 874  -    874  473,656  3,824  477,480  478,354

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

At cost / amortised cost

 Long term financing  238,223  895,100  1,133,323  -    -    -    1,133,323

 Trade and other payables  16,037  -    16,037  616,035  -    616,035  632,072

 Accrued finance cost  -    -    -    30,270  -    30,270  30,270

 Short term borrowings  3,176,979  -    3,176,979  -    -    -    3,176,979

 Loan from related parties  -    -    -    48,135  -    48,135  48,135

 Unclaimed dividend  -    -    -    11,992  -    11,992  11,992

 3,431,239  895,100  4,326,339  706,432  -    706,432  5,032,771

Maturity up to

One Year

Maturity after

One Year
Sub Total

Maturity up to

One Year

Maturity after

One Year
Sub Total

Non-Mark-up / Non-Interest Based

Total

--------------------------------------------(Rupees in thousand)-----------------------------------------

2020

Mark-up / Interest Based

FINANCIAL ASSETS

At cost / amortised cost

 Long term loans  -    -    -    1,820  1,224  3,044  3,044

 Long and short term deposits  -    -    -    5  2,429  2,434  2,434

 Trade debts  -    -    -    207,178  -    207,178  207,178

 Other receivables  -    -    -    604  -    604  604

 Short term investment  2,100,000  -    2,100,000  3,781  -    3,781  2,103,781

 Cash and bank balances  554  -    554  35,835  -    35,835  36,389

 2,100,554  -    2,100,554  249,223  3,653  252,876  2,353,430

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

At cost / amortised cost

Long term financing  292,123  1,163,612  1,455,735  -    -    -    1,455,735

 Trade and other payables  56,261  -    56,261  965,113  -    965,113  1,021,374

 Accrued finance cost  -    -    -    31,816  -    31,816  31,816

 Short term borrowings  3,641,288  -    3,641,288  -    -    -    3,641,288

 Loan from related parties  -    -    -    48,135  -    48,135  48,135

 Unclaimed dividend  -    -    -    9,599  -    9,599  9,599

 3,989,672  1,163,612  5,153,284  1,054,663  -    1,054,663  6,207,947
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42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

42.1 Financial Risk Management  Objectives

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks that include credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
(including interest/ mark-up rate risk, currency risk and other price risk). The Company's overall risk management
programs focuses on the under predictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on
the Company's financial performance.

This note presents information about the Company's Exposure to each of the above risk, the Company's objectives,
policies and procedures for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of capital. Further
quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

The Company's Board of Directors provides policies for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific
areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest/ mark-up rate risk , credit risk, financial instruments and investment
of excess liquidity. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.

The information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risk, the Company's objectives, policies and
procedures for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of capital, is as follows;

A Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing
to discharge an obligation. The Company's operating activities exposes it to credit risks arising mainly in respect of
loans and advances, deposits, trade debts, other receivables, short-term investment and bank balances. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

Loans

These represent loans to executive and other employees against which the Company pursues for the recovery
through monthly deductions from salaries of these employees and also the Company retains right to adjust retirement
balance in case of default hence there is no significant credit risk in this respect. Certain loans are receivable from
growers; however, considering the uncertainty about their recovery an impairment allowance is made there against
as disclosed in note 12.2. 

Deposits

These represent security deposits against utilities and other services and contracts. These are not significant and
further based on past experience and credit worthiness of the counter parties the Company does not expect that
these counter parties will fail to meet their obligations hence the Company believes that it is not exposed any significant
credit risk in respect of deposits.

Trade debts

Trade debts are due from local and foreign customers. The Company manages credit risk in respect of trade debts
interalia by obtaining advance against sales / or through letter of credits and by monitoring and follow up of customers.
All the export debts are secured under irrevocable letter of credit, document acceptance contracts and other acceptable
banking instruments. Further the Company actively pursue for the recovery and the significant amounts have been
recovered subsequent to the year end date. Futhermore, these are neither past due nor impaired, hence no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of trade debts. Aging of trade debts is as follows:

1 to 6 months 415,500 207,178

2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)

Loans to executive and other employees  5,011  3,044
Long and short term deposits  3,541  2,434
Trade debts  415,500  207,178
Other receivables  165  604
Short term investment  376  2,103,781
Bank balances  53,113  35,539

 477,706  2,352,580
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Short term investment and Bank balances

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing funds and maintaining bank accounts only with financial
institution that have stable credit rating. Given these high credit ratings, management does not expect that any counter
party will fail to meet their obligations.

The bank balances along with credit ratings are tabulated below:

In Local Currency

United Bank Limited AAA A-1+  15,003  8,040
Al-Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited A A-1  10,933  8,088
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited AA+ A-1+  6,523  811
National Bank of Pakistan Limited AAA A-1+  4,159  5,964
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited AAA A-1+  3,382  968
MCB Bank Limited AAA A-1+  3,194  3,681
Allied Bank Limited AAA A-1+  2,452  490
Faysal Bank Limited AA A-1+  1,839  504,212
Askari Bank Limited AA+ A-1+  1,832 
BankIslami Pakistan Limited A+ A-1  1,381  440
Habib Bank Limited AAA A-1+  679  584
Samba Bank Limited AA A-1  478  478
Meezan Bank Limited AAA A-1+  456  1,605,027
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited AA A-1+  93  93
Bank Al-Habib Limited AAA A-1+  77  308
JS Bank Limited AA- A-1+  47  47
Soneri Bank Limited AA- A-1+  40  40

In Foreign Currency

Habib Bank Limited AAA A-1+  44  49

 52,612  2,139,320

2021 2020

Rupees in thousand

Short Term
Ratings

Long Term
Ratings

Financial assets that are either past due or impaired

The credit quality of financial assets that are either past due or impaired is assessed by reference to past experience
and external ratings or to historical information about counter party default rates. 

As at the reporting date amounts of Rs. 25.018 million (2020: 25.018 million) receivable from growers were past due
against which impairment allowance have been made. These past due loans to growers are outstanding for more
than three years (Refer Note 12.2).
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B Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk where the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities when they fall due. The exposure to liquidity risk along with contractual maturities of the financial
liabilities is as follows:

Long term financing  1,133,323  1,299,904  37,746  261,131  834,765  166,262

Trade and other payables  632,072  632,072  632,072  -    -    -

Accrued finance cost  30,270  30,270  28,715  1,555  -    -

Short-term borrowings  3,176,979  3,176,979  300,979  2,876,000  -    -

Loan from related parties  48,135  48,135  48,135  -    -    -

Unclaimed dividend  11,992  11,991  11,991  -    -    -

 5,032,771  5,199,351  1,059,638  3,138,686  834,765  166,262

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and ensuring the fund availability through adequate
credit facilities. At September 30, 2021 the Company has Rs. 5,413 million (2020: Rs. 2,999 million) available unutilized
short term financing limit from financial institutions and also has Rs. 53.761 million (2020: Rs. 36.389 million) being
cash and bank balances. The Company has also made investment of Rs. 0.373 million (2020: Rs. 2,100 million) in
short term securities which can be realised as well.

C Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument,
change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities, and liquidity in the market.
Market risk comprises of three types of risks: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. The Company is
subject only interest rate risk and currency risk whereas there were no financial instrument as at year end that were
subject to other price risk.
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Year ended 30 Carrying

AmountSeptember 2021 > 5 years

(Rupees in thousand)

Less than

3 months

3 to

 12 months

1 to 5

 years

Contractual

Cashflows

Long term financing  1,455,736  1,710,709  44,656  335,861  1,062,509  267,684

Trade and other payables  1,021,374  1,021,374  274,673  746,701  -    -

Accrued finance cost  31,816  31,816  24,456  7,360  -    -

Short-term borrowings  3,641,288  3,641,288  171,288  3,470,000  -    -

Loan from related parties  48,135  48,135  48,135  -    -    -

Unclaimed dividend  9,599  9,599  9,599  -    -    -

 6,207,948  6,462,921  572,807  4,559,922  1,062,509  267,684

Year ended 30 Carrying

AmountSeptember 2020 > 5 years

(Rupees in thousand)

Less than

3 months

3 to

 12 months

1 to 5

 years

Contractual

Cashflows



Fair value sensitivity analysis 

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Therefore, a change in interest / markup rate at the reporting date would not effect profit or loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis

An increase / decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased /increased

profit for the year before tax by the amount of Rs. 37.519 million (2020: Rs. 24.433 million) assuming that all other

variables remains constant.

2020
(Rupees in thousand)

Note 2021

Carrying Values

Financial Liabilities

Variable Rate Instruments

Long term financing 20  560,000  846,250
Trade and other payables 22.2  16,037  56,261
Short term borrowings 24  3,176,979  3,641,288

 3,753,016  4,543,799

Financial Assets

Variable Rate Instruments

Short term investment 15.1  373  2,100,000
Bank balances (PLS savings) 16.1  501  554

 874  2,100,554

Net  exposure  3,752,142  2,443,245

D Interest/ mark-up rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company's major interest / markup rate exposure arises from long term
financings, short term borrowings and payables. The Company analyses its interest / markup rate exposure on a
regular basis by monitoring mark-up/interest rate trends and taking appropriate actions. As at the year end the interest
/ markup rate profile of the Company's interest / markup bearing financial instruments is:
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E Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly from future economical transactions or
receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

Currently, the Company's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts receivables / payable from /
to the foreign entities and balances in foreign currencies with local entities. Management regularly analyses and
monitors exchange rates and in appropriate cases, the Company takes out forward contracts to mitigate risk. The
Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

Sensitivity analysis

A 10 percent strengthening / weakening of the PKR against USD at 30 September would have decreased / increased
profit before tax by the amount of Rs. 29.241 million (2020: Rs. 19.179 million). The effect of commitments in foreign
currency would have been Rs. 6.675 million (2020: Rs. 1.465 Million) .This analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular interest rates, remains constant.

The following significant exchange rates have been applied:

Rupee per USD

Average rate  170.70  166.15
Reporting date rate - Selling  170.95  166.40
Reporting date rate - Buying  170.45  165.90

Rupee per Euro

Average rate  198.43  194.92
Reporting date rate - Selling  198.14  195.21
Reporting date rate - Buying  198.72  194.62

2021 2020

2021 2020 2021 2020
(Rupees in thousand)

Statement of Financial Position Exposure

Foreign debtors  $ 1,715,296  $ 1,155,816  292,372  191,750
Bank balances  $ 258  $ 258  44  49

 292,416  191,799
Off Statement of Financial Position Exposure

Commitments
      US Dollars  $ 30,100  $ 58,862  5,146  9,795
      EUROS  � 310,867  � 24,914  61,595  4,863

 66,741  14,658
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F Capital risk management

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view
to maintain an appropriate mix amongst various sources of finance to minimize risk.

The primary objectives of the Company when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of
changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders or issue new shares. 

During 2021 the Company's strategy was to maintain leveraged gearing. The gearing ratios as at September 30,
2021 and 2020 were as follows:

2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)

Total borrowings  4,358,437  5,145,158

Less: Cash and cash equivalent  (54,137)  (2,140,170)

Net debt  4,304,300  3,004,988

Total equity  4,661,403  4,779,041

Total equity and debt  8,965,703  7,784,029

Gearing ratio (%) 48.01% 38.60%

43 FAIR VALUES / MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an
exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

A number of the Company�s accounting policies and disclosure require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial, if any and non-financial assets and liabilities. When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and uses observable market data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows: 

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Management assessed that the fair values of cash & cash equivalent, short term investment and short term deposits,
trade receivables, trade payables, short term borrowing and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. For long term deposit asset and long term liabilities,
management considers that their carrying values approximates fair value. Fair value of forward contracts is determined
using level 2 input.

The fair value of land and buildings and plant and machinery is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement. Management
engages an independent external expert / valuator to carry out periodic valuation of its non-financial assets (i.e. Land,
Building and Plant and Machinery) and selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained by the valuer.
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Land and Building The valuation is considered on the factors of location, need of the
buyers, the overall prevailing market situation and other
considerations linked with this. 

Plant and Machinery Factors taken into consideration in order to assess the present
value of the machinery and equipments include Make, Model,
Quality, Operational Capacity, Existing Condition, Demand and
Resale Prospects, Depreciation and Obsolescence etc.

44.1 The break-up of fair value of investment is:

Meezan Amdani Certificate  84,500 98.78%  78,500 98.39%
Saving accounts with banks  1,046 1.22%  1,234 1.61%

 85,546 100.00%  79,734 100.00%

44 PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The following information based on latest financial statements of the fund:

Size of the fund - Total assets  90,399  83,203

Cost of investments made  85,546  79,734

Percentage of investments made 94.63% 95.83%

Fair value of investments  85,546  79,734

2021

Un-audited

.... % ....Rs. 000s
2020

Audited

.... % ....Rs. 000s

2021 2020

(Rupees in thousand)

Un-audited Audited

44.2 The investment out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the

Companies Act, 2017 and rules formulated for this purpose.

45 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

No of persons employed as on year end were 361 (2020: 377) and average number of employee during the year

were 394 (2020: 417).

46 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements were authorized for issue in the Board of Directors meeting held on December 23, 2021.

47 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to the year ended September 30, 2021, the Board of Directors has proposed a final cash dividend of

Rs. 63.35 million at 30% i.e. Rs. 3.00 per share of Rs. 10 each (2020: Rs. 253.424 million at 120% i.e. Rs. 12 per

share of Rs. 10 each) in their meeting held on December 23, 2021 subject to the approval of the members at the

Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on January 27, 2022.
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48 GENERAL

48.1 Comparitive figures have been re-arranged and re-grouped where considered necessary for more appropriate

presentation and comparison.

48.2 Amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupee unless otherwise stated.

ZIA ZAKARIA
Managing Director & CEO

ZAID ZAKARIA
Chief Financial Officer

AZIZ AYOOB
Director

67



PATTERN OF HOLDING OF THE SHARES HELD BY THE
SHAREHOLDERS AS ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

68

NO. OF
SHARESHOLDERS

TOTAL SHARES
HELD

S H A R E  H O L D I N G S

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

1 INDIVIDUALS 2370 13,614,891 64.47%
2 INSURANCE COMPANIES 1 23,551 0.11%
3 JOINT STOCK COMPANIES 20 5,031,682 23.83%
4 FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 4 726,658 3.44%
5 MUTUAL FUND 1 1,372,210 6.50%
6 MODARABAS 1 15 0.00%
7 OTHERS 8 349,656 1.66%

TOTAL:- 2405 21,118,663 100.00%

SR. NO.
CATEGORIES OF
SHARE HOLDERS

NUMBER OF
SHARE HOLDERS

SHARES
HELD

PERCENTAGE
%

1379 1 - 100 31,427
572 101 - 500 146,399
145 501 - 1000 122,182
179 1001 - 5000 414,074
40 5001 - 10000 309,410
18 10001 - 15000 222,817
10 15001 - 20000 185,481
8 20001 - 25000 183,714
1 25001 - 30000 28,500
1 30001 - 35000 30,970
2 40001 - 45000 83,813
1 45001 - 50000 49,000
1 50001 - 55000 52,100
1 60001 - 65000 64,816
1 75001 - 80000 77,000
1 80001 - 85000 80,500
1 100001 - 105000 104,900
1 110001 - 115000 112,200
1 115001 - 120000 115,909
2 130001 - 135000 266,706
1 135001 - 140000 138,500
2 145001 - 150000 294,175
2 155001 - 160000 313,866
1 175001 - 180000 180,000
3 180001 - 185000 551,003
1 185001 - 190000 185,514
1 200001 - 205000 204,553
2 205001 - 210000 411,119
1 215001 - 220000 218,086
2 220001 - 225000 445,991
1 225001 - 230000 226,624
1 265001 - 270000 267,838
1 285001 - 290000 288,924
1 300001 - 305000 301,500
1 305001 - 310000 308,500
1 310001 - 315000 313,040
1 360001 - 365000 360,263
2 375001 - 380000 755,669
1 395001 - 400000 400,000
1 410001 - 415000 410,210
1 420001 - 425000 422,428
1 515001 - 520000 520,000
1 570001 - 575000 571,845
3 585001 - 590000 1,763,305
1 640001 - 645000 644,346
1 665001 - 670000 666,566
1 725001 - 730000 725,100
1 910001 - 915000 910,999
1 960001 - 965000 964,787
1 1370001 - 1375000 1,372,210
1 3295001 - 3300000 3,299,784

2405  21,118,663



CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

No. of
Share holders Sheres Held PercentageCategories of Shareholders

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING FIVE PERCENT OR MORE VOTING INTEREST IN THE LISTED COMPANY

CDC TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) FUND   1,372,210

AL-NOOR SUGAR MILLS LIMITED  3,299,784

ZAID ZAKARIA  1,164,346

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES  UNDERTAKINGS     
AND RELATED PARTIES  

Al-Noor Sugar Mills Ltd. 1  3,299,784 15.62%
Reliance Insurance Co. Ltd. 1  23,551 0.11%
Noori Trading Corporation (Pvt.) Ltd. 1  666,566 3.16%
Zain Trading Corporation (Pvt.) Ltd. 2  1,023,199 4.84%

 
NBP, NIT & ICP   

NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN, TRUSTEE DEPARTMENT 1  100 0.00%
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 1  1,358 0.01%
TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN  EMP BENEVOLENT FUND TRUST. 1  7,757 0.04%
TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND 1  221,055 1.05%
  
MUTUAL FUND

CDC TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) FUND 1 1,372,210 6.50%

DIRECTORS , CEO & THEIR SPOUSES AND   
MINOR CHILDREN  

MR. ABDUL AZIZ AYOOB 1 204,553 0.97%
MR. NOOR MOHAMMAD ZAKARIA 1 587,769 2.78%
MR. ZIA ZAKARIA 1 422,428 2.00%
MRS. SANOBER HAMID ZAKARIA 1 10,641 0.05%
MR. ASAD AHMED MOHIUDDIN 1 571,845 2.71%
MR. NAEEM AHMED SHAFFI 1 1,000 0.00%
MRS. MEHRUNNISA A. AZIZ (W/O A. AZIZ AYOOB) 1 43,613 0.21%
MRS. SHAHNAZ SATTAR ZAKARIA (W/O NOOR MOHAMMAD ZAKARIA) 1 587,769 2.78%

PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES AND CORP. 1 725,100 3.43%
  

BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCE INSTITUTIONS, 2 115 0.00%
NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANIES,  
INSURANCE COMPANIES, MODARABAS,  
LEASING, TAKAFUL AND  PENSION FUND.  

JOINT STOCK COMPANIES 16  42,133 0.20%
 

OTHERS 6  120,844 0.57%
 

GENERAL PUBLIC 2362  11,185,273 52.96%

TOTAL:- 2405  21,118,663 100.00%

Details of trading in the shares by the Directors, Excutives and their spouses and minor children:
None of the Directors, Executive and their spouses and minor Children has traded in the shares of the Company
during the year.
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PROXY FORM

I/We ..........................................................................................................................................................................................

in the district of ................................................... being a Member of SHAHMURAD SUGAR MILLS LIMITED

and holder of ............................................................................................................... Ordinary Shares as per Share

(Number of Shares)

Register Folio No. .................... and/or CDC Participant I.D. No. ..................... and Sub Account No. ..................

hereby appoint .......................................................................... of ..........................................................................................

or failing him ...........................................................................................................................................................................

of..................................................................................... also a member; as my/our Proxy in my/our absence to

attend and vote for me/us at the 43rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on the 27th day of January two

thousand Twenty Two at 11:30 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof :

Signed this .................................................................................. day of .......................................................... 2022

WITNESSES:

1. Signature ...............................................

Name: ...............................................

Address ...............................................

...............................................

CNIC or

Passport No. ...............................................

2. Signature ...............................................

Name: ...............................................

Address ...............................................

...............................................

CNIC or

Passport No. ...............................................

Rupees five

Revenue

Stamp

Signature of Member(s)

NOTE:

1. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the office of our Shares Registered office not later than 48 hours
before the time of holding the meeting.

2. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxies are deposited by a member  with the Company,
all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

3. For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities

In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met.

(i)  Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be provided with the proxy form.
(ii) In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature  shall be submitted

(unless it has been provided earlier alongwith proxy form to the Company).
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